CITY OF MILWAUKIE

and

AMERICAN FEDERATION OF STATE

COUNTY AND MUNICIPAL EMPLOYEES



Upon Execution to June 30, 2024

Table of Contents

ARTICLE 1 – RECOGNITION1	
ARTICLE 2 – MANAGEMENT RIGHTS2	!
ARTICLE 3 – EMPLOYEE RIGHTS2	
ARTICLE 4 – UNION RIGHTS	
ARTICLE 5 – NON-DISCRIMINATION6	
ARTICLE 6 – HOURS OF WORK	
ARTICLE 7 – WAGES	
ARTICLE 8 – ADDITIONAL COMPENSATION	
ARTICLE 9 – OVERTIME AND CTO IN LIEU OF OVERTIME	
ARTICLE 10 – SENIORITY AND PROBATIONARY PERIOD17	
ARTICLE 11 – VACATIONS	
ARTICLE 12 - HOLIDAYS	
ARTICLE 13 – LEAVES	
ARTICLE 14 – BENEFITS	
ARTICLE 15 - RETIREMENT	
ARTICLE 16 – LAYOFF AND RECALL	
ARTICLE 17 – DISCIPLINE AND DISCHARGE	
ARTICLE 18 – GRIEVANCE AND ARBITRATION	
ARTICLE 19 – EFFECT OF PERSONNEL RULES	
ARTICLE 20 – PERSONNEL FILE	
ARTICLE 21 – SAVINGS/WAIVER OF BARGAINING	
ARTICLE 22 – FUNDING/BUDGET REDUCTIONS	
ARTICLE 23 – TERM OF AGREEMENT	
APPENDIX A – WAGE SCALE	

ARTICLE 1 – RECOGNITION

This CONTRACT is entered into between the CITY OF MILWAUKIE, an Oregon municipal corporation, hereinafter referred to as "CITY", and AFSCME LOCAL 350-5, AFSCME COUNCIL 75 hereinafter referred to as "UNION"

The CITY recognizes the UNION as the sole and exclusive bargaining agent for the purposes of negotiations with the CITY for all regular and regular part-time employees that are or will come under the jurisdiction of the City of Milwaukie, with the exception of employees in the police bargaining unit, confidential or supervisory employees as defined by ORS 243.650 and employees who work less than 20 hours a week or temporary employees. Temporary employees are those working up to six (6) months duration or who work for up to 1039 hours in any calendar year.

A. Limited Term Employees

Any employee appointed to a position designated by mutual agreement between the CITY and the UNION as a "limited term" position. Limited term appointments shall not exceed two years. Limited term employees are covered by all provisions of this bargaining agreement except Article (10) Seniority and Article (15) Layoff.

B. Purpose

It is the purpose of this CONTRACT to maintain and increase individual productivity and quality of services, to prevent any interruptions of work and interference with the efficient operation of the CITY; and to set forth the full and complete agreement between the parties concerning wages, hours of work and conditions of employment.

C. Negotiations

The CITY agrees to negotiate only with the UNION through its negotiating agent or agents officially designated by the UNION to act in its behalf. The CITY further agrees that neither it nor any of its officials or agents will attempt to negotiate privately or individually with any member or members.

The UNION recognizes the CITY as the duly elected representative of the people and agrees to negotiate only with the CITY through the negotiating agent or agents officially designated by the City Council to act in its behalf. The UNION agrees further that neither it, nor any of its members or agents, will attempt to negotiate privately or individually with any Council member, manager or other person or persons.

D. New classifications

In the event the CITY establishes a new classification in the unit, the classification title, classification specification and proposed salary range shall be forwarded to the UNION for review and comment. If the UNION agrees with the salary range, it shall so notify the CITY within fourteen (14) calendar days. If the UNION disagrees with the proposed salary range, it shall notify the CITY within fourteen (14) calendar days and meet with the City consistent with ORS 243.698. In any event, the City shall not be barred from implementing the classification and proposed wage scale during the term of negotiations. If the UNION does not notify the CITY of its agreement or disagreement within fourteen (14) calendar days, it shall be considered that the UNION agrees with the salary range.

ARTICLE 2 – MANAGEMENT RIGHTS

A. Responsibilities

It is recognized that the CITY has and will continue to retain the exclusive right and responsibility to operate and manage the CITY, its departments, facilities, properties and the work related activities of its employees. Rights of employees and the UNION are limited to those rights set forth in the CONTRACT and provided by the United States and Oregon Constitutions, and the Charter of the City of Milwaukie.

Except as limited by the terms of this CONTRACT, the CITY's managerial and operational authority includes, but is not limited to, the right to determine the location of facilities and work stations; the right to establish, relocate or close existing facilities; the right to subcontract; the right to maintain discipline and control; the determination of safety, health and property protection measures; the right to direct all working forces, including the right to hire, suspend, discharge and transfer employees; the determination of the size of the working force, the allocation and assignment of work; the creation, combination, modification or elimination of positions, and the determination of work schedules and hours of work. The CITY's right to subcontract shall not be used for the specific purpose of undermining or discriminating against the UNION.

B. Contracting out

The UNION recognizes that the CITY retains the right to contract and subcontract work as it determines; provided that as to work presently and regularly performed by members of the bargaining unit, the CITY agrees to afford an opportunity to the UNION to meet and discuss the effect of such action on the employment level prior to finalizing and implementing its decision. The CITY agrees to give consideration to alternatives such as work force reduction by attrition, transfers to open vacancies and preferential rehiring when such contracting action will affect the employment level. Such considerations shall be within the CITY's primary requirement to maintain broad authority over its operations in order to provide efficient and economic services to the citizens of the community.

ARTICLE 3 – EMPLOYEE RIGHTS

A. Job posting

The CITY when it determines to fill a vacancy will send an e-mail to all of the following:

- 1. Each AFSCME UNION employees; and
- 2. The AFSCME UNION President and AFSCME Union Vice President.

The CITY shall post such job announcements on the City website for not less than seven (7) calendar days.

B. Part-time benefits

Benefits for part-time employees will be calculated based upon the budgeted full-time equivalency (FTE) of the position using the chart below.

FTE		Prorated Benefit
.90 FTE to 1.0 FTE	36-40 hours	100%
.66 FTE to .89 FTE	26-35.9 hours	75%
.50 FTE to .65 FTE	20-25.9 hours	50%

Benefits include sick leave, vacation leave, holiday leave, medical insurance (except as provided by Article 14(A)(4), deferred compensation, shift differential, vision coverage, dental insurance and life insurance.

ARTICLE 4 – UNION RIGHTS

A. Union Dues and Voluntary Payments.

The terms of this CONTRACT have been made for all employees in the bargaining unit and not only for members of the UNION.

The City agrees to deduct the monthly dues for Union members or voluntary payments from non-Union members through payroll deductions for those employees who individually request such deductions in writing. The Union agrees to provide copies of authorization cards to the City. The UNION agrees to indemnify, defend and hold the CITY harmless against any claims made or suits against the CITY as a result of this Section A.

Payroll deduction per pay period of dues for Union members or voluntary payments for non-Union members shall be made by the dispersing officer for the CITY each month to the Treasurer of the UNION. Employees are subject to the terms of their Union membership. The amount of dues shall be indicated by the UNION to the CITY in writing and shall be effective on the date indicated by the UNION.

With each payment of dues to the Union, the City will provide a list of all bargaining unit members, including new hires, identifying those employees who have and have not paid dues including name, wage rate, address and phone number, and job title.

1. Officers & Representatives

The UNION shall certify to the CITY Human Resources Director the names and addresses of UNION officers and representatives. The CITY may refuse to recognize such officers and representatives until so certified.

B. Access

UNION representatives shall be accorded reasonable access to CITY premises for the purpose of UNION business, provided that such access does not interfere with the performance by CITY employees of their duties.

C. Interference of work

1. Duties

Duties required by the UNION of its officers, except attendance at meetings with the CITY or with supervisory personnel and aggrieved employees arising out of a grievance by an employee, shall not interfere with their or other employees' regular work assignments as employees of the CITY.

2. Approval

No UNION officer shall leave a duty or work station for purposes connected with the UNION office without the specific approval of the supervisor or other authorized management official.

3. Outside working hours

UNION activities will normally be carried on outside of working hours. It is further recognized that there are reasonable limited deviations from this policy such as posting of UNION notices and distribution of literature which do not require substantial periods of time. Where such activities cannot reasonably be performed except during scheduled working hours, and where such activities are performed without disruption of employee work performance, they are authorized and may be done without loss of pay to the employees involved. The UNION officer performing such union activities during working hours must give notice to and receive approval from the supervisor or other authorized management official to ensure the UNION officer is not disrupting employee work performance.

D. Strike/lockout

Neither the UNION, its officers or agents, nor any of the employees covered by this CONTRACT will engage in, encourage, sanction, support or suggest any strikes, slow-downs, mass resignations, mass absenteeism, the willful absence from one's position or the stoppage of work during the term of this CONTRACT. Any or all employees who violate any of the provisions of this article may be discharged or otherwise disciplined as the CITY deems necessary.

There will be no lockout of employees in the unit by the CITY as a consequence of any dispute arising during the period of this CONTRACT.

E. Bulletin Boards

The CITY agrees to provide the UNION bulletin board space, in mutually agreed locations, for the use of the UNION in communicating with bargaining unit employees.

F. Electronic Mail

1. Use by Union Representatives:

Union representatives (those persons holding positions as officers within the UNION and/or AFSCME Council 75 Representatives) may use the CITY e-mail system to communicate concerning collective bargaining.

- a) "Collective bargaining" means any of the following:
 - 1) Union announcements to the union membership (such as meeting subjects, dates and times);
 - 2) The meaning, interpretation or application of this contract:
 - 3) Grievances proposed in accordance with Article 16 of the contract;
 - 4) Matters related to the collective bargaining relationship between the CITY and the UNION.

2. Use by Employees:

- a) Employees may use the CITY e-mail system to contact UNION representatives and or the Council 75 representatives regarding collective bargaining, including any of the following purposes:
 - 1) To arrange a date, time and location for a meeting concerning the meaning, interpretation or application of this CONTRACT.
 - 2) To ask a question regarding the meaning, interpretation, or application of this CONTRACT.
 - 3) To present a grievance pursuant to Article 16 of this CONTRACT, regarding the meaning, interpretation or application of this CONTRACT.
 - 4) To request union representation in matters concerning the meaning, application or interpretation of this CONTRACT.

It is understood that there is no expectation of confidentiality or privacy concerning communications sent over the CITY e-mail system, and that the CITY reserves the right to access and disclose all messages sent over the CITY e-mail system for any purpose. It is expressly understood that there are no expectation of confidentiality concerning communications sent over the CITY e-mail system or other electronic devices provided by the City concerning grievances processed pursuant to Article 16 of this CONTRACT or negotiations between the parties to this CONTRACT.

The CITY e-mail system will not be used for political purposes at any time, and this limitation shall override any of the permissible uses of the e-mail system listed above. "Political purposes" shall include matters in support of or opposition to candidates or measures in any election, including UNION elections.

G. Negotiations

The CITY negotiating committee shall meet at mutually convenient times with the UNION negotiating committee. The UNION negotiating committee shall consist of not more than four (4) members selected by the UNION. UNION negotiating members will suffer no loss of pay for their

attendance at bargaining. Attendance will not result in any overtime obligations on the part of the CITY. Negotiation preparation meetings shall be conducted on the employees' own time, however, this does not apply to the UNION's bargaining teams preparations directly before or after a negotiation meeting with the CITY.

H. New Employee Orientation

The City will notify the Union of new employees hired into bargaining unit positions with the intent of providing the information within 10 calendar days. As a part of the City orientation process for new employees at Human Resources, each new employee will be provided a copy of the labor agreement and any materials submitted as a packet by the Union for delivery to new members. A Union representative will be afforded up to thirty (30) minutes at a mutually agreed time to meet without loss of pay to either employee.

I. Labor/Management Meetings

The parties recognize the advantage to meeting occasionally in Labor Management meetings to share information and discuss concerns. The parties agree to meet at least once every six months for a Labor/Management meeting. The parties are not precluded from meeting more often subject to pending matters. Either party may have up to four (4) designated representatives present, and the meeting will be conducted on work time for up to 2 hours per meeting. More representatives may attend subject to agreement. The meetings are advisory, and any consensus is subject to approval of each respective party subject to written agreement by MOU.

ARTICLE 5 – NON-DISCRIMINATION

A. Not interfere

The CITY agrees not to interfere with the rights of employees to become members of the UNION, and there shall be no discrimination, interference, restraint, by the CITY or any CITY representative against any employee because of UNION membership or because of any employee activity in an official capacity on behalf of the UNION, provided such activity does not interfere with CITY operations in serving and carrying out its responsibility to the public and is consistent with the terms of this CONTRACT.

B. Apply equally

The provisions of this CONTRACT shall be applied equally to all employees in the bargaining unit without discrimination as to age, sex, marital status, race, color, creed, national origin, religion, mental or physical disability (subject to the individual's ability and qualifications to perform the duties of the classification), or political affiliation-and other protected class as outlined by Federal or State law or City non-discrimination policy. The UNION shall share with the CITY the responsibility for applying this provision of the CONTRACT.

The UNION recognizes its responsibility as the bargaining agent for all bargaining unit employees and agrees to represent itself as a bargaining unit without discrimination, interference, restraint, or coercion, whether or not those members of the bargaining unit belong to said UNION.

C. Cooperation

Cooperate with investigation of complaints: In the event a discrimination complaint is made against either party, both parties agree to cooperate by providing information relative to the complaint.

ARTICLE 6 – HOURS OF WORK

A. Work week

The City will establish work schedules according to its operational requirements.

The workweek of full-time employees shall be forty (40) hours. The workweek shall normally consist of five (5) consecutive eight (8) hour days.

Public Works: fulltime staff normally work between the hours of 5:30 am to 4:30 pm

City Offices: fulltime staff normally work between the hours of 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m.

Library: is a seven (7) day a week operation and days and hours of work vary depending on business needs.

The CITY reserves the right to determine the work hours based on the needs of the CITY and services to the public.

B. Public Works Alternate Work Week Schedule

During the months of approximately May - mid-September of each year, Public Works departments, as designated, may be requested, based on operational needs, to work an alternate 9-80 work schedule. The 9-80 work schedule will consist of a two (2) week work schedule consisting of the first work week based on four (4) nine (9) hour days followed the next day with a 4 hour shift to complete the work week. A new work week would begin on the same day with a four hour work day, two days off and then four (4) nine (9) hours days followed by three (3) days off. The 9/80 schedule is intended to result in a 40 hour work week and not intended to incur overtime obligations.

Employees on this schedule shall receive overtime for all authorized work in excess of nine (9) hours for each scheduled nine (9) hour work day or 40 hours in a work week (Friday to Friday). For the purposes of this section, sick leave and vacations shall be on an hour for hour basis. Holidays shall be eight (8) hours per day per scheduled shift for both eight and nine (9) hour shifts. Employees may use one hour of vacation or comp time for full pay on a nine (9) hour shift. Use of paid leaves does not count as hours worked.

C. Workday (Split shift)

In the case of a split shift, the time an employee works in a day, after twelve (12) hours from the time an employee initially reports for work, shall be considered overtime.

D. Work Shift

All shifts shall have a starting and quitting time established by the CITY.

E. Lunch & breaks

All employees who are scheduled to work six (6) or more consecutive hours shall be granted an unpaid lunch period of thirty (30) to sixty (60) minutes. Such lunch periods shall be scheduled as near as possible to the midpoint of the work schedule consistent with the CITY's need to provide service to the public.

All employees shall receive a fifteen (15) minute rest period for each four hours worked consecutively. If possible, such rest period shall be scheduled near the midpoint of the four-hour work period.

F. Work Schedule Changes

The CITY agrees it will not change the workweek to a four day work week, ten hour day schedule for any employee more than once per calendar year. If the CITY wishes to change the workweek for any employee to a four day work week, ten hour day schedule more than once per calendar year, the consent of the-UNION shall be required. Return from the four day work week, ten hour day schedule to the original work week shall not count as a change in the work week.

Notice of changes to seasonal and regular work schedules, other than temporary schedule changes, shall be posted ten (10) working days prior to the effective date of the change.

At least five (5) working days' notice shall be given to an employee prior to a temporary change for situations such as training, events or meetings outside of normal working hours.

If the five (5) day notice period is not given, the employee shall be compensated at the overtime rate for all hours worked outside the regular schedule until such notice is met.

If the City provides less than twenty-four (24) hours of notice the call-back provisions in Article 9 (B) shall apply.

Notwithstanding the above, a notice period is not required in the following circumstances:

- 1) In the case of an emergency and for the duration thereof per Article 6 G 1;
- 2) Mutual agreement between the City and the employee.

G. Emergency Schedule Changes

If there is an emergency situation that requires 24-hour operations the City may convert to a 24hour operation immediately. In that instance anyone who is currently working will be allowed to finish any portion or all of their shift or go home unless that is the shift they are scheduled to fill for emergency situations. If an employee goes home, they may either take the time off as Leave without Pay (LWOP) or any accrued leave other than sick leave. If an employee works a swing or graveyard shift within the first 24 hours of the activation that employee will receive double time (call back rate) for that shift. Any subsequent shifts will be at straight time.

If the emergency operation is called off before midnight, all employees will resume their normal work schedule the following day and return to their normal straight time rate of pay for hours worked. Employees will be permitted to use accrued leaves, including sick leave, in order to maintain 8 hours before returning to their next regularly scheduled shift. With supervisor approval,

the employee may flex their schedule as well.

If an emergency operation is called off between midnight and 7 a.m.:

- 1) Those that have worked swing shift (generally 3 pm to 11 pm) will be given the option of working the day shift at straight time, or taking LWOP or using any accrued leaves other than sick leave to cover the absence.
- 2) Those that are working the graveyard shift (generally 11 am to 7 am) will be given the option of staying up to six (6) hours more on the day shift at time and ½ for any hours over eight (8) in a shift.
- 3) Those scheduled to normally work the day shift (generally 7 am to 3:30 pm) will be expected to report to work as already scheduled at a straight time rate of pay.

H. Flex-arrangements

The grievance procedures set forth in this agreement shall not apply to flex arrangements.

1. Flex-time on infrequent basis

Employees may request flexible scheduling which permits infrequent modification of hours of work on a case-by-case basis. The purpose of this flexibility is to allow employees the ability to adjust the hours of a work shift. Such a modification is not automatic and is subject to approval of the supervisor and must meet the business needs of the City. A flexible work schedule shall still total forty (40) hours per week. Utilization of flexible scheduling must meet the following criteria:

- Not exceed four hour variance per day
- Be mutually beneficial to employees and the City
- Not negatively affect other employees
- Not impede customer service or normal work process
- Not generate additional labor costs or overtime
- Occur during the same work week.

Employee requests for flexible scheduling must be submitted to the supervisor seventy-two (72) hours in advance where feasible and in writing or by e-mail, unless the City waives said requirements. The supervisor must respond in writing or by e-mail.

2. Flex-time – Regular change to schedule

Employees may request a flexible schedule, which permits a modification to the regular work hours per day or days of work per week. Such a modification is not automatic and is subject to approval of the supervisor and must meet the business needs of the City. A flexible work schedule shall still total forty (40) hours per week. Adjustments to hours of work must:

- Not exceed ten (10) hours of work per day
- Be mutually beneficial to employees and the City of Milwaukie
- Not negatively affect other employees
- Not impede customer service or normal work process

- Not generate additional labor costs or overtime
- a) Requesting a modified work schedule on a regular basis.
- b) Employee requests for flexible scheduling on a regular basis must be submitted at least two (2) weeks in advance and in writing or e-mail, unless the City waives said requirements. The supervisor must respond in writing or by e-mail and provide a copy of the request and response to Human Resources. Any approved changes will be documented in the employee's personnel file.
- c) A regular change to schedule to permit flextime may only be requested once in a twelvemonth period of time. However, an employee may have their schedule reverted back to a five (5) day eight (8) hour day during the same twelve months at either the request of the City or the employee.
- d) Either the City or the employee may revert back to a non-flex work schedule with two (2) weeks of notice to the other party.

2. Impact on Overtime

The overtime provisions outlined in Article 9 of this contract will still apply. Overtime work must be pre-approved by a supervisor.

3. Job share

At the CITY's discretion, more than one employee may occupy a single authorized position, as job share employees each working no less than .5 FTE.

- a) The conversion of a position from full time to Job Share status must originate with a written request from the employee occupying that full-time position to the Human Resources Director. The CITY shall notify the employee requesting the job share of the CITY's decision in writing. Current employees in the department in which the position is created will have the first opportunity to apply for the job share position(s).
- b) Job sharing employees shall accrue vacation leave, sick leave and holiday pay based on a prorate of hours worked.
- c) Job sharing employees shall be entitled to share the full Employer paid insurance benefits for one (1) full time position based on a prorate of regular hours scheduled per week or month, whatever is appropriate (Reference Article 3, Section C). In any event, the Employer contribution for insurance benefits in a job share position is limited to the amount authorized for one (1) full-time employee.

I. City Closure

1. Emergencies/Inclement Weather

Jointly, we recognize that in times of emergency, employees will perform best if they know that their families are safe and secure. We will provide reasonable time while on duty for employees to contact their family and make necessary arrangement for their family's safety and security. Off-duty labor or management personnel will do what they can to assist families of on-duty workers as much as possible.

Employees in Public Works are considered to be essential personnel, and unless otherwise

excused, must report to work in emergencies and in inclement weather situations. EOC (Emergency Operations Center) staff are considered to be essential personnel and unless otherwise excused, must report to work in emergencies when the EOC is activated. The City maintains the right to declare other employees as essential based on the situational need.

2. Inclement Weather/Emergency Procedures

If an employee is advised by the City Manager or a department head not to report to work for reasons other than a layoff or is sent home prior to the end of the shift for other than disciplinary reasons, the employee shall be paid their regular rate of pay for the remaining hours of their scheduled workday.

If an employee is unable to come to work due to inclement weather conditions, the employee may request to:

- 1) make up the time during the week of absence;
- 2) use accrued leave banks, other than sick leave, to cover the time off of work; or
- 3) perform duties remotely if applicable and approved. If the employee elects to make up the time, it is subject to the approval of the supervisor consistent with the needs of the CITY so as not to incur overtime costs. In the event the employee does not select one of the above options, the absent hours will be taken out of the employee's largest leave bank other than sick leave. It is the employee's responsibility to check the CITY'S inclement weather line to see if they are to report for work. It is the CITY'S responsibility to have the inclement weather line updated by 6 a.m. on the morning of any CITY closure.

In emergency operations situations, the department head or designee shall be responsible for assignments of duties, as needed, to perform the tasks necessary for service continuance. Staff assignments, to the extent possible, shall be rotated through qualified personnel and posted electronically and in the JCB lunchroom and available through each Supervisor, respectively.

Essential employees (union: *and those assigned on site who are*) required to work after the City Manager or designee declares city buildings closed will receive time and one-half $(1\frac{1}{2})$ pay for hours worked during this closure that would have been during normal business hours of the City (Monday through Friday, excluding weekends and holidays), but not for any time that the employee receives double time pay under Section G of this Article. Compensation shall not be paid twice for the same hours.

ARTICLE 7 – WAGES

A. Salary schedule

Wage rates for all classifications covered by this contract are contained in Appendix A of this CONTRACT. The negotiated cost of living increase will be added to Range 1.0 Step A; from there the remainder of the schedule is developed with 5% differences between ranges and steps. Base hourly pay is for an employees' regularly scheduled FTE hours (ie: A full time employee is 2080 hours)

B. General Increases and Range Adjustments

General Increases:

Effective retroactive to June 24, 2021, a cost of living wage increase of 2% will be applied as stated above.

Effective the payroll period following execution of this agreement, each employee currently employed at the time will be paid an additional payment of \$1,000.00 (one-thousand) included in the employee's regular paycheck.

Effective December 24, 2021, each classification on the salary schedule will receive an hourly wage increase in the amount of one percent (1%) applied to step one (1) of the salary schedule. Steps are 5% apart.

Effective upon June 24, 2022, the cost of living wage increase of 3% will be applied as stated above.

Effective upon June 24, 2023, the cost of living wage increase of 3% will be applied as stated above.

Range Adjustments:

Effective pay period following the execution of this agreement, the classification of Parking Enforcement Officer will be moved from Range 53 to Range 54.

C. Longevity Pay

To recognize the importance of employee retention and reward employees for their dedication to the City, employees are eligible for longevity pay. Currently employees receive a premium of 1% of base hourly pay per pay period after ten (10) years (after 120 months) of service. After fifteen (15) years of service, an employee will receive a total premium of two (2%) of base hourly pay per pay period. After twenty (20) years of service an employee shall receive a total of four percent (4%) of base hourly pay per pay period.

Effective December 24, 2021, longevity pay will be provide at the following tiers:

7 years of service (84 months)	1% of base hourly pay
10 years of service (120 months)	2% of base hourly pay
15 years of service (180 months)	3% of base hourly pay
20 years of service (240 months)	4% of base hourly pay

Tiers are not cumulative.

D. Classification Review

The Union may request Human Resources to review an employee's job description and current

duties in effort to align job descriptions and work duties. Human Resources will make best effort to provide a review within 30-60 days of request with the understanding that Human Resources is a department of limited resources and may only handle up to 4-5 reviews per year. This provision does not create any obligation to bargain wages or working conditions and review is not subject to grievance. Assignment of work remains a management right. In the event the City determines that a change in classification is needed, the City will approach the Union for further discussion. The City is not precluded from updating job descriptions based on periodic review of work duties without further bargaining obligations.

ARTICLE 8 – ADDITIONAL COMPENSATION

A. Assignment

1. Working Out of Class (WOC)

Employees assigned by the department head or designees to perform the duties of a higher paid non-supervisory position will receive an additional premium. The premium rate will be the first step in the higher range that allows for at least a 5% increase in base hourly rate but in no case more than a 10% increase.

2. Acting in Capacity (AIC)

If an employee is assigned in writing to act in capacity for a supervisor (non-bargaining unit level supervisor) for one full work day or more the employee will be eligible for an additional premium. Employees assigned to work as a non-bargaining unit supervisor will receive an additional premium of 10% base hourly pay for the period of the assignment

Nothing in this Article shall be interpreted as a guarantee that an employee shall be assigned to work out of classification or AIC in the absence of another employee.

An employee performing duties out of classification for training and development purposes shall be so informed in writing and it shall be mutually agreed to by the supervisor and the employee. The notice shall state the purpose and length of the assignment. During this training, there shall be no extra pay for the work. A copy of the notice shall be placed in the employee's personnel file.

3. On-Call:

At the discretion of the City, employees may be assigned to on-call status in order to meet the operational needs of the City. The City will first seek volunteers to fill assignments, and if insufficient volunteers are available, the City will make the assignment. Nothing in this section shall be construed to abridge management's right to assign supervisory staff to these assignments. Supervisory staff must be qualified for the respective standby assignment. Employees assigned to on-call assignment must be readily available to report to work within a reasonable period of time (around 30 min.) as directed by the Department Head. Periods of assignment for On-Call are not considered compensable hours worked. Employees assigned to On-Call may be required to carry an electronic communication device.

Insofar as practical, all qualified personnel will be afforded the opportunity to participate an equal number of times in the On-Call program for which they are qualified to be assigned.

During On-call periods, employees shall be compensated:

a) **Compensation.** Employees assigned to on-call by will receive the additional premium equivalent 1.5 hours of straight pay for every calendar day of assignment, or as prorated for the assignment. For Stand-by assignment on a holiday (24 hours of the actual day), the premium will be the equivalent of 3.0 hours of straight pay for the 24-hour period of assignment. Employees may also elect to receive this payment as accrual in their compensatory time bank. If an employee is WOC or AIC during the day and required to carry a City issued communication device after regular work hours, the employee will receive both WOC or AIC and On-Call pay.

b) Telemetering/SCADA Response Assignment

To qualify for the Telemetering/SCADA response assignments employees must be adequately trained on the Telemetering (SCADA) system and be SCADA trained. Compensation for this section is the same as "on-call" above.

4. Specialty Pay

The CITY may assign employees who provide knowledge, skill or ability to the CITY that is not a part of their regular job description and is not considered "working out of class" to a specialty assignment. Employees who have a specialty assignment are eligible for specialty pay for hours worked as part of that assignment.

a) Approval

An employee may be placed on a specialty assignment by a written request of the employee's department head. This request must be approved by the Human Resources Director prior to the commencement of the specialty assignment. The Human Resources Director will consider requests for specialty assignments based on the following criteria: (1) the CITY needs and will use a special skill, ability or knowledge of the employee; (2) the special skill, ability or knowledge the employee uses outside the job classification of the employee; and (3) the special skill, ability or knowledge of the employee may be acknowledged by a certification or degree program. The Human Resources Director will reach a decision within fourteen (14) calendar days from receipt of the written request of the employee's department head.

b) Rate

Employees who have been placed on a specialty assignment shall be compensated at the first step in the higher range that allows for a five (5%) increase but in no case shall the specialty pay exceed ten (10%) more than the employee's regular rate for the actual hours worked on the specialty assignment. The actual rate of pay will be determined by the Human Resources Director as part of consideration of the request. The amount of training required to acquire the special skill, ability or knowledge of the employee will be considered in determining the actual rate of pay.

c) Time limit

An employee may not be placed on a single specialty assignment that exceeds 4,000 hours in any five-year period. Should the department head require that the specialty assignment continue beyond this limit, then the department head will work with Human Resources to consider reclassification of the employee's position. The City maintains the discretion to assign and discontinue assignments.

5. Coach

Employees will receive an additional premium of five (5%) of base pay rate for the work period that they are assigned and designated, in writing, by the department head, as a coach.

It shall be the responsibility of management to determine when and if an employee will be assigned a coach, who that coach will be, and the duration of the assignment.

Coaching includes the full responsibility for training an employee. A training schedule will be developed in advance. The coach will be responsible for a daily, weekly, and monthly evaluation. The coach will be responsible to the employee's supervisor for the performance evaluation of the trainee. The coach will be held responsible for satisfactory performance as a coach. The City maintains the discretion to assign and discontinue assignments.

6. Appeals for WOC, AIC and Coach

If an employee believes they should be considered for working out of classification, specialty pay, or coaching pay for a temporary assignment (Sections 1,3, and 4 above), the employee may make a written request of their supervisor. If the employee does not receive an answer within fourteen (14) calendar days from making their request of their supervisor or if the employee does not agree with the supervisor's response, the employee may request that the Human Resources Director investigate the request. The request to the Human Resources Director shall be within fourteen (14) calendar days of knowledge of the above inaction by the supervisor or receipt of supervisor's decision. The Human Resources Director will make a decision within fourteen (14) calendar days of receipt of said request.

7. Shift Differential

The CITY agrees to pay \$10 per pay period for shift differential to those library employees covered by this CONTRACT who are required to work on evening shifts.

8. Direct Responsible Charge (Public Works)

Unless otherwise documented in the employee's class specification, employees will receive an additional premium of five percent (5%) base hourly pay for the period that are assigned, in writing, as the Direct Responsible Charge (DRC) for water distribution and sewer collection (certification level 3). No more than two employees are eligible for the DRC premium at any given time.

9. Bilingual Premium.

The City may designate a classification and employee eligible to receive an additional premium of 3% base hourly pay for when the employee is determined to be fluent in reading and speaking Spanish or Russian that is beneficial to City operations. The City will establish a process to determine an employee's fluency. The City's decision regarding eligibility for the bilingual premium and acceptable fluency are not subject to grievance. The right to end bilingual pay based on operational need and the City will give the employee 30 days' notice prior to ending the incentive.

ARTICLE 9 – OVERTIME AND CTO IN LIEU OF OVERTIME

A. Pay

Employees may be required to work overtime for operational need. Overtime must be preapproved by the City. Except as otherwise provided in this article, time and one half (1-1/2) the employee's regular hourly rate of pay shall be paid for all work performed in excess of forty (40) hours per week or daily overtime for hours worked in excess of eight (8) hours per day on a 5/8 shift; in excess of ten hours worked on a 4/10 shift, or in excess of 9 hours worked on a 9/80 shift. Use of paid leaves (such as: sick, vacation, holiday, floater hours, compensatory time) does not count as hours worked for the purposes of determining the obligation to pay overtime compensation.

B. Regular day off:

1. Call-back.

A call back is defined as a request for the employee to respond to the site when not regularly scheduled to work. Call back does not include pre-scheduled overtime. It does not include situations that are resolved via a telephone/email response, etc, which will be paid hour for hour unless de minimis. A de minimis contact, such as an isolated phone call by management to an employee, lasting around 5 minutes or less is not compensable.

All call-backs, excluding video conferences and telephone calls, will be paid double time for actual time worked outside the normal work schedule. The CITY agrees to guarantee a minimum of two (2) hours on all on-site call backs. This means that if an employee is called back and works less than two hours they will be paid double time for two hours, and if the employee works more than two hours, the employee will be paid double time for actual time worked. Time towards call back begins when the employee arrives at the CITY facility or job site (whichever is first) and ends when the employee leaves the CITY facility or job site (whichever is last).

If an employee is called back more than once during the initial two (2) hour call back, the employee will not receive an additional two (2) hour minimum call back for the additional call backs as long as the employee is still out on a call.

2. Electronic Remote Response.

An electronic remote response is defined as authorized work, by an employee, where the employee does not physically report to a work location but performs an authorized work function through electronic access.

An employee who is called to work outside of their scheduled shift and responds by means of an electronic remote response shall be paid at the rate of time and one-half the employee's normal pay rate for all hours worked. Such compensation shall not be paid twice for the same hours. Remote response is not considered call-back.

Video conferences: Employees requested to appear by video conference for assigned work meetings (with the City or authorized third party) or similar when outside of their regular work schedule will receive a minimum overtime payment of 1 hour. Overtime for video conference is paid at time and one-half the employee's regular hourly rate.

Telephone calls: If the City (or authorized third party) makes a work-related telephone call to an employee outside of regular work hours, and the employee is required as a result to perform work for the City, or the employee is requested to answer a work related call or attend a telephone meeting outside of regular work hours, the employee shall be compensated for the actual time worked on the telephone call, rounded up to the nearest 15 minutes and paid at time and one-half of the employee's regular hourly rate. Phone calls to an employee for the purpose of asking the employee if they are available to perform extra work or for matters that are de minimus in time are not compensable. De minimus is generally for calls of less than 5 minutes.

C. Compensatory Time Off (CTO)

1. Provision

Employees shall be compensated for overtime either in the form of compensation or compensatory time off (CTO), if the employee so chooses.

2. Cap

An employee will not be allowed to accumulate more than eighty (80) hours of compensatory time off during the fiscal year and the amount must be reduced to no more than sixty (60) hours by the end of the fiscal year. After eighty (80) hours of compensatory time accumulation, the CITY will pay out any additional overtime earned. By the last day of the last pay period for the fiscal year, June 23rd, the employee must reduce their compensatory time off bank to sixty (60) hours or the CITY will pay out any hours over sixty (60).

3. Sell back

An employee may "sell back" for payment up to forty (40) hours of accrued compensatory time off per fiscal year. The employee may sell back twice per fiscal year, only in December and June, and must submit a request to Administration/Payroll by the 1st working day of the month or per Payroll instructions. The City will make best efforts to inform employees in advance when the "sell back" time is approaching.

4. Scheduling of CTO

Employees must request the use of CTO time in advance per department procedures.

CTO requests are at the discretion of the City and subject to the approval of the supervisor, with due regard to the employee and particular regard for the needs of the City. After the employee requests leave, the supervisor shall have ten (10) calendar days to respond in writing. No response shall indicate the leave request is granted.

ARTICLE 10 – SENIORITY AND PROBATIONARY PERIOD

A. Seniority

1. In class

Seniority for both full time and part time employees shall mean length of an employee's service within the job classification. Unpaid leaves of absence shall not be included in determining length of service. Termination of employment, except by reason of staff

reduction, shall result in loss of seniority. If an employee should subsequently be hired again by the CITY, their most recent date of hire shall become the date from which seniority is determined.

B. Probation

1. Length

All Employees will serve initial six (6) month probation when newly hired and when placed in a new classification through a selection process. The CITY may extend the six month probationary period for up to three additional consecutive months when, in its judgment, such is necessary to fairly evaluate the employee's performance.

2. Initial Probation

Employees who have not completed the initial six (6) month probationary period shall be covered by all terms and conditions of this CONTRACT except that the CITY may terminate the employee without just cause. Termination is not subject to grievance

3. Subsequent Probation Periods

If an employee has completed one full initial probationary period or a full (six) 6 months of employment if promoted prior to the end of the initial probationary period then the following will apply. A promoted employee will be given a performance review near the midpoint of the probationary period.

The City may demote an employee on promotional probation if the employee is unable to successfully complete the probation of the higher-level classification due to performance issues. If these performance issues would not impact the employee's ability to perform the duties of the lower level position, the employee shall be returned to a position in the employee's former classification if such position is budgeted and approved for filling and if the employee has more seniority than any other employee in the former classification who would be laid off as the result of such action. If the actions of the employee warrant discipline, provisions of Article 15 and 16 shall apply.

ARTICLE 11 – VACATIONS

Vacations

1. Eligibility

Employees shall be permitted to use accumulated vacation benefits after six (6) months of employment. If an employee becomes ill while on vacation, the time off shall be counted as vacation unless their illness requires seeing a doctor in an emergency room, urgent care or being admitted to a hospital. If an employee leaves City employment for any reason prior to completion of six (6) full months of employment, vacation time will not be paid to the employee.

2. Vacation Scheduling

Approval of vacation leave requests shall be at the discretion of the CITY. After an employee requests leave, the supervisor shall have ten (10) calendar days to respond in writing. No City of Milwaukie / AFSCME 18

response shall indicate the leave request is granted.

Vacations will be scheduled by seniority within work units whenever feasible. However, employees may only use seniority bidding one time per year.

For the library staff the following shall apply:

Vacation requests will be approved in order of receipt for any particular day. The first LA 1, LA 2 or Librarian to request a day off will have the request approved. Other requests will be approved based on business needs. Once a request is submitted, the Supervisor will reply within ten (10) days. If no answer is received in ten (10) days then the request will be considered granted. An approved time off request will not be affected by hours or staffing changes. Time off requests will be submitted through normal vacation request procedures.

If the time off request is submitted ten (10) days in advance and there is need for additional coverage during the requested time off, the employee will have the option of trading hours to minimize the amount of vacation time used. If the employee does not agree to trade hours, the Supervisor will arrange for coverage and the employee will use accrued leave for time off. When extra coverage is needed, hours will be offered to regular status employees first to the extent it does not impact an employee's overall FTE status. If there are no employees who want the additional hours, the supervisor will contact on-call employees to meet the scheduling needs. If the request is made with less than ten (10) days of notice, management will try to accommodate the request to the best of their ability.

Employees granted vacation time during spring break (as determined by the North Clackamas School District) of the previous year may not apply for time off during spring break of the current year until on or after January 1st of the current year. Employees who were granted vacation time during the last two weeks of the previous year may not apply for time off during the last two weeks of the current year until on or after September 1st of the current year.

3. Accrual rate

Full-time employees shall accrue vacation at the rates shown below, divided between the first day of the month and the fifteenth day of each month, for each preceding full calendar month worked:

Months	Hours of Vacation	Weeks	Days	Max Vacation
of Service	Per Month	Per Year	Per Year	Accrual (hrs)
0 - 48	8.67	2.6	13	208
49 - 108	10.67	3.2	16	256
109 - 168	12.67	3.8	19	304
169 - 228	14.67	4.4	22	352
229+	17.34	5.2	26	416

4. Unpaid leave affecting vacation accrual rate

Employees having unpaid leave during a calendar month shall accrue paid vacation leave at the following rates. This provision does not apply for use of protected leaves:

- a) 0-39 hours unpaid leave......100%
- b) 40-79 hours unpaid leave.....75%
- c) 80-119 hours unpaid leave......50%
- d) 120-159 hours unpaid leave.....25%
- e) 160 or more hours unpaid leave...0%

5. Maximum accrual

Employees may accrue vacation leave to a maximum of two times the annual accrual rate. Employees may not accrue more than the maximum. Employees who will lose vacation accrual because of a denied vacation request may request review of the denial by the City Manager or their designee.

6. Off-Season Vacation Bonus Program

The CITY wishes to encourage Public Works and Building regular full-time employees to utilize their vacation time throughout the fiscal year in order to reduce overtime. The program will be implemented, at the discretion of the CITY, ensuring that customer service needs are met, productivity is maintained, and there is no overtime expense, paid or compensatory time off. Therefore, this bonus program for off-season vacation scheduling is not available when the minimum staffing needs, as determined by the CITY, are unmet and there is overtime cost associated with approving the requested bonus vacation.

The CITY offers eight (8) hours bonus vacation time off with pay for every thirty-two (32) consecutive vacation hours off taken between November 1 and April 30, excluding the period from December 15 through December 31. No more than two eight-hour blocks of vacation bonus hours (16 hours) can be earned and taken each fiscal year. The eight (8) vacation bonus hours off, must be taken consecutive to a block of thirty-two (32) consecutive vacation hours off, for a minimum total of forty (40) consecutive vacation hours off and a maximum total of eighty (80) consecutive vacation hours off. There is no carry forward to another fiscal year.

7. Part-time employees

Part-time employees in budgeted positions of .5 FTE or greater shall accrue prorated vacation leave based on the budgeted FTE of the position and in the amount calculated based on the chart set forth in Article 3, Section C. Vacation leave maximum accrual shall also be prorated.

ARTICLE 12 - HOLIDAYS

1. Eligibility

a) Holidays off

1) Listing of holidays:

The following days shall be recognized and observed as paid holidays:

- (a) New Year's Day January 1.
- (b) Martin Luther King Day Third Monday in January.
- (c) President's Day Third Monday in February.
- (d) Memorial Day Last Monday in May.
- (e) Juneteenth June 19
- (f) Independence Day July 4.
- (g) Labor Day First Monday in September.
- (h) Veteran's Day November 11.
- (i) Thanksgiving Day Fourth Thursday in November.
- (j) Day after Thanksgiving Fourth Friday in November.
- (k) Christmas Eve -For any workday when Christmas falls on a Tuesday, Wednesday, Thursday or Friday
- (1) Christmas Day December 25.
- (m) 12 hours Floating Holiday
 - i. In the event of layoff, an employee shall be compensated for an unused floating holiday.
 - ii. In the event an employee has requested to use a floating holiday on at least two (2) occasions during the fiscal year and has been denied such use by their supervisor, the employee shall receive a cash payment for this holiday on their first paycheck of the following fiscal year.
 - iii. Upon termination of employment (discharge or quit), employees shall not receive payment for unused floating holiday.
 - iv. Floating holiday banks expire beginning the first date of the last pay period every fiscal year (approx. June 23rd)
 - v. New employees receive a prorated balance of floating holiday.

2. Falling on Sat. or Sun. or Other Regular Day Off

It is the policy of the CITY that for 5 day a week operations, if a holiday falls on a Saturday, it shall be taken on the preceding Friday; and if the holiday falls on Sunday, it shall be taken on the Monday after the holiday. For seven (7) day a week operations, the facility will be closed and the holiday observed on the actual day of the holiday.

When a full-time employee is unable to observe a holiday because the holiday falls on the employee's day off, the employee may request to receive eight (8) hours compensatory time at a straight time rate in lieu of the holiday off or take an alternate day off within the same week. This is subject to the approval of the supervisor and consistent with the business needs of the City so as not to incur overtime costs.

3. Holiday work

Work performed on holidays as defined in this article shall be considered as overtime and shall be compensated at the rate of time and one-half (1-1/2) in addition to the employee's normal rate of pay.

4. Part-time employees

Part-time employees in budgeted positions of .5 FTE or greater shall be eligible for paid holiday leave listed in Paragraph A prorated based on the budgeted FTE of the position. See Article 3, Section C for formula.

In situations where the holiday will cause the part time employee to lose hours, the employee may request one of the following: 1) make up the time during the week of the holiday; 2) take the time as leave without pay; or 3) use accrued leave banks, other than sick leave, to cover the time off of work. If the employee elects to make up the time, it is subject to the approval of the supervisor and consistent with the business needs of the City so as not to incur overtime costs.

ARTICLE 13 – LEAVES

A. Sick Leave

1. Eligibility/use

Sick leave may be taken for actual illness or disability or medical / dental appointments, of the employee; or illness, disability or death of a member of the employee's immediate family as specified in this article, or as permitted by State and Federal law. Every effort will be made to schedule medical and dental appointments outside normal work hours especially when working a 4-10 work week.

The employee may use accumulated sick leave in the event of illness or if their presence is required during the illness of a member of their immediate family member. Immediate family member normally shall be defined as spouse, spousal equivalent, parent, grandparent, child, stepchild, foster child, grandchild, brother or sister, mother-in-law and father-in-law or as otherwise permitted by law.

Verification of the necessity of absence from work and use of sick leave may be required from the attending physician or other physician designated by the CITY at the CITY's expense when the CITY has reason to believe the employee may be abusing sick leave privileges, or when otherwise required by law. An employee using sick leave will not be asked to find their replacement.

The City will adhere to the statutory provisions of the New Oregon Paid Leave Law (HB2005) without further bargaining obligations. Any benefits provided by the Oregon Paid

Leave Law will be considered concurrent with any benefits provided in this agreement as permitted by law.

2. City required medical examination

In the event the CITY has reason to believe that an employee is not able to perform their duties for medical reasons, the CITY may require a medical examination at the CITY's expense, and if the exam dictates, may place the employee on sick leave until the employee is medically released to return to work, or may move to a medical layoff if the employee is unable to return to work and a physician is unable to determine a likely date for return to work that is within six (6) months of date of medical exam. Should an employee become eligible to perform the duties of the employee's classification at the time placed on medical layoff, previously held position subject to leaving on good terms, or qualified position within a job family as determined by the City, as documented by a medical professional, within thirty (30) months of date of hayoff the employee may be placed on the layoff list for the remainder of that thirty (30) month time period is eligible to bump a temporary or probationary employee within the employee's classification.

3. Accrual rate

Full-time employees shall accrue sick leave at the rate of eight (8) hours per month worked, for a total of ninety-six (96) sick leave hours accumulated per calendar year.

Part-time employees in budgeted positions of .5 FTE or greater shall accrue sick leave in the same proportion that the budgeted FTE of their position bears to a full-time employee, and in the amount calculated based on the chart in Article 3, Section C. The maximum shall also be prorated.

4. Unpaid leave time accrual rate

Employees having unpaid leave during the calendar month shall accrue paid sick leave at the following rates, and no less than required by Oregon law:

- a) 0-39 hours unpaid leave 100%
- b) 40-79 hours unpaid leave 75%
- c) 80-119 hours unpaid leave 50%
- d) 120-159 hours unpaid leave 25%
- e) 160 or more hours unpaid leave 0%

5. Maximum accrual

There shall be a maximum of 960 accumulated sick leave hours. Part-time employee maximum shall be prorated. Proration shall be calculated based on Article 3, Section C.

6. PERS conversion

The CITY agrees to participate in the Public Employees Retirement System's 50% sick leave conversion program as provided in ORS 238.350. (note: This applies to Tier 1 and Tier 2 only)

B. On the job injury

1. Eligibility/pay

The CITY shall provide workers' compensation insurance as required by state law. Employees who become eligible for CITY workers' compensation benefits shall be allowed up to twelve (12) months leave if they are unable to perform the duties of their position for a temporary period. At the employee's election and request, the employee may use accrued sick, or other leave provided below to pay the difference between payments received from worker's compensation and the employee's net salary.

2. Use of sick and other leaves

"Withholding" shall be done according to applicable federal and state requirements, and a pro rata charge shall be made against the employee's sick leave, compensatory time or vacation banks of time, in that order to cover the amount paid out to the employee.

3. Benefits

While on such leave the employee shall continue to receive benefits as if working except that no sick leave will accrue and, if the employee never returns to work, vacation and holiday accumulations will be reduced by the amounts accrued since the beginning of the job-related injury or illness leave.

C. Bereavement

1. Eligibility and amount

In the case of death in the employee's family, the employee shall be granted leave as follows in subparagraph a) and b) for the purposes of attending the funeral(s) and making necessary arrangements.

- a) For immediate family members the employee will be granted five (5) day's bereavement leave with pay. Immediate family is defined as spouse and the following relatives of the employee, spouse, or spousal equivalent: children, stepchildren, parents, stepparents, and any relative living in the employee's immediate household. Spousal equivalent is defined as a person living in a committed co-habitational relationship where both parties share responsibilities for finances and other major decisions, with a duration of at least one-year.
- b) For other eligible family members, the employee will be granted three (3) days bereavement leave with pay. Other eligible relatives include the following relatives of the employee, spouse or spousal equivalent: siblings, grandparents, grandchildren, step siblings, aunt, uncle, niece and nephew.
- c) Bereavement leave must be used within sixty (60) days of the event of the death of the relative unless a memorial service is planned after the sixty (60) days.
- d) All leaves provided in section are concurrent to any leaves available under OFLA.

2. Additional leave

Any allowance of time off for bereavement over the time allowed in Section C.1 or any bereavement leave for the death of a family member other than immediate or other eligible family members must be recommended by the employee's supervisor and approved by the

Human Resources Director. The time used will be deducted from the employee's accumulated time off, and the employee may choose to deduct this additional leave from their vacation, compensatory time off, or sick leave banks.

3. Special Circumstances

The CITY recognizes that employees may have family members whose relationship transcends the blood relationship and who are not covered as immediate family members. In the event of the death of a family member whose relationship with the employee transcends the blood relationship, the employee may request that their supervisor grant three (3) days of bereavement leave with pay. The supervisor will forward a recommendation approving or denying the request for a special circumstance to the City Manager or his designee for final decision on the request.

D. Sick Leave Donation

Employees may participate in the Sick Leave Donation Program established by the CITY. The CITY will annually review the use of this program to ensure that it is used fairly and poses no threat of liability to the CITY. The sick leave donation program will be added to and administered within the City Personnel and Administrative Policies and Procedures; it is available on the City intranet site for reference purposes. This section expires upon implementation of benefits under the Oregon Paid Family Medical Leave Act.

E. Personal

Leave of absence for not more than ninety (90) days without pay may be granted for justifiable reasons (e.g., child care or to care for an ill family member) at the CITY's discretion, provided the leave does not seriously disrupt CITY operations. Personal leaves are not granted until all unused vacation, compensatory time off, administrative leave days, floating holidays and any other paid leaves have been exhausted. A department head may grant a leave of absence without pay not to exceed ninety (90) calendar days.

F. Extended Leave of Absence without Pay

Leaves of absence without pay for periods in excess of ninety (90) days must be approved by the City Manager or designee and will not be in excess of 18 months, subject to applicable law.

G. Jury Duty and Other Related Duties

1. Jury Duty

Any employee shall be granted a leave of absence with pay for service with a jury provided that the employee submit copy of summons, note jury duty on time sheet, turn into the City any pay for jury duty (less mileage), and provided that the period of absence is only for actual time required for such service and reasonable travel time. Compensation received for mileage shall not be included in determining salary due the employee.

2. Other Related Duties

Any employee shall be granted a leave of absence with pay for an appearance before a court, legislative committee or judicial or quasi-judicial body as a witness within the employee's

scope of employment in response to a subpoena or other direction by proper authority provided that the salary paid to the employee shall be reduced by an amount equal to any compensation received as witness fees and provided that the period of absence is only for actual time required and reasonable travel time. Employees shall not be eligible for this compensation if such subpoena is for a non-work related dispute in which the employee is either the plaintiff or defendant or is for a dispute between the CITY and the employee. Compensation received for mileage shall not be included in determining salary due the employee.

H. Training

Employees may be assigned to training with pay for educational purposes to attend conferences, seminars, briefing sessions, or other functions of a similar nature that are intended to improve or upgrade the individual's skill or professional ability, provided it does not interfere with the operation of the CITY. Subject to budgetary limitations, training opportunities will be available to all employees. When an employee's request for training is denied, the CITY shall inform the employee in writing of the reasons for denial.

1. Driving Time

Driving time outside of the normal work shift including on days off will be considered commute time and will not be compensated if it is considered local. Local is 30 miles or less from place of work.

I. Parental Leave

The CITY will comply with the provisions of State and Federal law.

Eligible employees may receive up to a maximum of 160 hours of paid parental leave, at 100% of the employee base rate, to be used within three (3) calendar months after the birth or adoption of a minor child. Eligibility requires at least 180 consecutive calendar days of employment with the City. Use of this paid time runs concurrent with applicable laws including OFLA and FMLA. Employees expecting to use parental leave need to provide at least 14 days' notice.

The paid benefits of parental leave under this section expire upon implementation of benefits under the Oregon Paid Family Medical Leave Act.

J. Unauthorized Leave

An absence of an employee from duty, including any absence for a single day or part of a day, that is not authorized by a specific grant or leave of absence approved by the employee's supervisor shall be deemed to be an absence without leave. Any such absence shall be without pay and may be grounds for disciplinary action including termination.

ARTICLE 14 – BENEFITS

A. Insurance

1. Health (including Medical and Vision) and Dental

a) Premium payment - Effective January 1, 2019:

(1) Health Insurance

Effective 1/1/2019, the CITY will offer Kaiser HMO B medical insurance plan including vision coverage and alternative care rider and the Blue Cross/Blue Shield (BC/BS) Plan Co-Pay A including vision coverage and alternative car rider. The CITY will pay ninety five percent (95%) of the monthly premium cost and the employee will pay five percent (5%) of the monthly premium cost for either plan selected by the employee. Employee contributions are pre-tax through payroll deduction.

(2) Dental Insurance

Effective 1/1/2019 the CITY will offer an ODS, Kaiser, and Willamette dental plan each including orthodontia. The CITY will pay ninety-five (95) % of the monthly premium cost and the employee will pay five (5) % of the monthly premium cost for the ODS plan. The CITY will pay up to the amount of premium contribution that it pays for the ODS plan for any employee that chooses the Kaiser or Willamette dental plan.

b) Premium only conversion plan

The City may provide, within the guidelines of the IRS Code Section 125, a premium conversion plan which allows the employee contributions toward medical and dental and vision premium to be paid in pre-tax dollars.

c) Carrier changes

The CITY agrees to meet and confer with the UNION before any insurance carrier change is made. In the event the CITY shall change insurance carriers the CITY shall continue to provide coverage that is comparable to current coverage unless the UNION agrees to a different level of benefits. If the CITY does not voluntarily change plans, rather the health insurance carrier or benefits administrators change terms of a plan, the CITY and the UNION agree to accept those changes or go to the next best available-plan until such time as the UNION and the City can meet and renegotiate that portion of the contract. The UNION acknowledges that insurance premium cost increases are a serious problem and agrees to participate in any study or cost containment program in an effort to reduce insurance costs.

In the event contributions to health care premiums exceed the Cadillac Tax limits under the Affordable Care Act, the parties agree to re-open Article 14.A.1(a)(1) Health Insurance.

2. Life

The City shall provide life insurance benefits included in the amount of one times the employee's annual salary with a maximum of \$100,000 with accidental dismemberment clause, at no premium cost to the employee.

3. Long Term Disability (LTD)

The CITY will continue to provide long-term disability insurance.

4. Insurance for Part-time Employees

Part-time employees in budgeted positions of .5 FTE or greater shall be eligible to participate in the health, dental, vision, life and disability insurance programs. The CITY will pay a portion of the premium the CITY pays for full time employees which is equal to the proportion the budgeted FTE of their position bears to a full-time position and calculated based on the chart set forth in Article 3, Section C. Part time .5 FTE employees electing medical and/or dental coverage will not pay more than 25% of the health insurance premium. In order to participate in these programs, these employees must pay their portion through payroll deduction. See Appendix B for premium rates.

5. Health Insurance opt-out

Employees who elect to opt-out of health insurance benefits (medical/vision) must provide proof of other insurance coverage at each open enrollment or qualifying event. Employees who provide such election and proof of coverage will receive a payment of \$100 per month through regular payroll subject to applicable withholdings so long as other coverage is maintained and subject to carrier rules and regulations.

B. Clothing & Equipment

1. City purchased, provided, repaired

a) Eligibility

Employees in the Public Works Department who engage in field work necessitating the wearing of rubber boots shall be issued one pair of calf length boots for on the job use only. Such boots shall be replaced by the CITY when no longer serviceable provided this was caused by fair wear and tear and not by carelessness on the part of the employee.

b) Safety

The CITY agrees to abide by standards of safety and health in accordance with the Oregon Safe Employment Act. (ORS 654.001 to 654.295 and 654.991). The CITY shall agree to meet and confer at the request of the UNION on matters of safety.

2. Allowance

a) Boot see Union proposal

The CITY will reimburse employees in all classifications that require boots for safety as determined by the safety committee, a boot allowance totaling three hundred dollars (\$300) in a two (2) year period of time. This boot allowance must be used within that time period to purchase and/or repair leather work boots which are for safety purposes and are to be used only for work. An original receipt must be presented to the CITY for payment. This reimbursement provision ends July 1, 2022.

Effective July 1, 2022, the City will pay employees in all classifications that require boots for safety, as determined by the City, an amount of \$250.00 in the first payroll period of July 2022 and July 2023. Payment is subject to applicable taxes. Employees are expected

to purchase appropriate boots with this payment, and employees agree the boots are for work purposes only.

3. Prescription Safety Glasses

The City will reimburse employees in all classifications requiring ANSI Z87.1 compliant glasses a safety prescription eyeglass reimbursement in the amount of one hundred and fifty (\$150) each fiscal year less any amount covered by the employee's City insurance plan to purchase prescription safety eyeglasses. An original receipt and a copy of the EOB must be presented to the City for payment. Effective the month following execution of this agreement, the reimbursement for safety prescription eyeglasses will change to \$200.00.

C. Flexible Spending Account

The CITY shall make available a flexible spending account program for dependent care and health care expense reimbursement. Participation in the program is at the option of the employee.

D. HRA VEBA

The CITY shall make available an HRA VEBA program to fund unreimbursed current or future medical expenses. The UNION as a unit may elect to have a voted amount (TBD) per pay period contributed to the members' individual HRA VEBA accounts in lieu of actual wage payment. The UNION members must elect if they want to exercise this option and inform the CITY of their choice for contributions for the upcoming fiscal year by May 31 or date designated by Human Resources.

ARTICLE 15 - RETIREMENT

1. PERS

The City agrees to participate in the Oregon State Public Employees Retirement System and to pay the employer's contribution. The City will also pay the six percent employee's contribution to the Oregon State Public Employees Retirement System to be deposited in the retirement account, annuity, or fund to which the employee's contribution is to be provided under applicable law. Employee compensation will not be reduced as a result of the City's payment of employee contributions.

In the event Oregon legislation prohibits the ability for the City to pay the employee PERS contribution, the parties agree to initiate bargaining the legislative change under the provisions of Article 20, Savings, and ORS 243.702. The parties acknowledge the intent of bargaining includes a reasonable resolution to account for the change in legislation and overall compensation.

2. Deferred Compensation

The CITY shall provide two and one-half percent (2.5%) of the employee's base salary to a CITY sponsored deferred compensation program. Effective December 24, 2021, the City contribution will change to three and one-half percent (3.5%). Base salary is determined by using the base hourly rate x 2080 hours.

ARTICLE 16 – LAYOFF AND RECALL

A. Layoff

1. Order of Layoff

In the event of an FTE reduction, the CITY will lay off employees based upon inverse order of seniority in the classification in which the reduction is occurring. A layoff is a separation of employment. The City reserves the right and discretion to set staffing levels. Within the effected classification, all non-bargaining unit employees will be terminated or laid off before any bargaining unit employee is laid off.

Seniority shall mean length of an employee's service within the job classification. Unpaid leaves of absence shall not be included in determining length of service. Termination of employment, except by reason of FTE reduction, shall result in loss of seniority. If an employee should subsequently be hired again by the CITY, the employee's most recent date of hire shall become the date from which seniority is determined.

2. Notice

Employees shall receive thirty (30) days written notice of layoff, provided that if the City Council determines an emergency situation exists, employees shall receive a minimum of fourteen (14) days of notice. If an employee does not elect to bump, the City may pay an employee equivalent wages for the remaining regularly scheduled work days, including holidays, in lieu of continued employment during the 30-day period.

3. Bumping Rights

In the event of a workforce reduction, bargaining unit employees to be laid off from a job classification may elect within ten (10) calendar days to bump into a lateral or a lower classification in the bargaining unit so long as:

- a) The employee has previously served in such classification and completed the probationary period, or the employee has demonstrated current possession of the required classifications, licenses, knowledge, skills and abilities to meet the minimum qualifications of the position.
- b) a vacancy exists or the employee subject to layoff has more seniority in service than an employee in the lower classification, and
- c) satisfactory performance in a probationary status to the lower or lateral classification which is not to exceed three (3) months. The City will provide reasonable training to assist the employee towards that endeavor. If the employee's performance is not satisfactory during the 3-month probationary period, the employee will be laid off.

Employees who are notified that they are eligible to bump into a lateral or lower level position in lieu of layoff must indicate their preference within ten (10) calendar days of receipt of such notice. Failure to respond in the time period will be deemed an agreement to accept layoff.

B. Recall

An employee who is laid off shall have preference for recall for any subsequent vacancy in the classification from which the employee was laid off or for any vacant position provided they possess the qualifications, licenses, knowledge, skills and abilities to meet the minimum

qualifications of the position. Non-bargaining unit employees have no recall rights. Recall shall be in order based upon seniority with the CITY. Employees will be removed from the recall list only under the following circumstances:

1. Terms of removal from Recall List

- a) Upon written request of the employee.
- b) Upon acceptance of reappointment from the recall list.
- c) Retirement.
- d) Upon loss of physical or other qualifications for the job.
- e) Upon failure to respond to a certified recall letter sent to the employee's last known address within ten (10) calendar days of its having been mailed and/or to report to work within fourteen (14) calendar days if employed elsewhere.
- f) Upon a finding of just cause for discipline.
- g) Upon expiration of thirty (30) months from the effective date of the layoff.

Recalled employees shall be reinstated with seniority rights accumulated as of the date of the layoff. Sick leave accrued at the time of layoff will be reinstated when an employee is recalled.

ARTICLE 17 – DISCIPLINE AND DISCHARGE

A. Cause

Discipline may be imposed only for just cause. Any disciplinary action, other than an oral reprimand, may be processed as a grievance under Article 18.

B. Normally progressive

Disciplinary action shall normally be progressive, and may include but is not limited to:

- 1. Oral reprimand
- 2. Written reprimand
- 3. Suspension without pay
- 4. Demotion

5. Discharge

The City is not precluded to impose discipline at a higher level based on the severity and totality of circumstances.

C. Manner imposed

Discipline and corrective actions will be imposed privately and limited disclosure, subject to applicable public records law as determined by the City

D. Due process

The CITY shall hold a due process hearing before imposing any discipline that will result in loss of pay or discharge.

E. Union representation

An employee has the right to have a UNION officer present at any interview when the employee has a reasonable belief that the interview is part of an investigation which could result in disciplinary action.

ARTICLE 18 – GRIEVANCE AND ARBITRATION

A. Grievance Procedure

Any dispute between the CITY and any employee covered by this CONTRACT concerning the CITY's interpretation or application of this CONTRACT, or a claim by such employee of breach or violation of the express terms of this CONTRACT, shall be deemed a grievance and shall be processed in accordance with the following procedure:

1. Step 1

The employee shall discuss the grievance on an informal basis with the employee's supervisor within fourteen (14) calendar days from the date the employee knows or should have known of the alleged violation. The employee may have a UNION representative assist the employee in presenting the case to the supervisor. If the grievance is not resolved within fourteen (14) calendar days by discussion with the supervisor, then the UNION representative may submit the grievance in writing to the supervisor within fourteen (14) calendar days on a UNION grievance form. Each statement of the grievance, at a minimum, shall contain the following information:

- a) A statement of the grievance and the relevant facts to support it; and
- b) The article and sections of the CONTRACT that have been breached; and
- c) A description as to exactly how this provision was breached; and
- d) A statement of the remedy or resolution being sought by the employee and the UNION; and
- e) Union president or representative signature.

The immediate supervisor shall respond to the employee and the UNION, indicating why the immediate supervisor denied the grievance, within fourteen (14) calendar days from receipt of the written grievance from the UNION.

2. Step 2

If the grievance is unresolved after Step 1, the UNION representative shall, within fourteen (14) calendar days from the time the UNION representative receives the written answer in Step 1, submit the grievance in writing to the department head together with a written statement indicating why the supervisor's response did not resolve the grievance. Within fourteen (14) calendar days the department head shall call a meeting with the employee and the UNION representative to discuss the grievance. This meeting may be waived by mutual consent of both parties. Within fourteen (14) calendar days after the meeting or from the date both parties agree not to hold a meeting, the department head shall submit <u>a his</u> written decision to the employee and the UNION indicating why the department head denied the grievance.

3. Step 3

If the grievance is unresolved after Step 2, the UNION representative shall within fourteen (14) calendar days of receiving the written answer in Step 2 submit the grievance in writing to the City Manager, together with a written statement indicating why the department head's response did not resolve the grievance. Within fourteen (14) calendar days, the City Manager or their designee shall call a meeting of the parties to discuss the grievance. The City Manager shall give a written answer to the employee and the UNION, indicating why the City Manager denied the grievance, within fourteen (14) calendar days from the date of the meeting

Mediation: If the Union is not satisfied with the decision provided by the City Manager at Step III, the Union may submit the grievance to mediation within fourteen (14) calendar days from either the City Manager's response or fourteen (14) calendar days from the due date of the response. The parties may mutually agree to a local mediator or use a mediator provided by the Employment Relations Board. Parties agree to share the cost of the mediator. Unless otherwise agreed by the parties, the period for mediation will be limited to 120 days, starting from timely notice of mediation by the moving party. The parties must meet at least one time and agree to meet in good faith to resolve the dispute. Termination cases are not subject to the mediation process and may move to the next step. The parties may mutually agree to forego mediation.

4. Step 4

If the grievance remains unresolved after Step 3, then the UNION shall notify the City Manager within fourteen (14) calendar days that arbitration procedures in Section C will be invoked.

B. Grievance Procedure Rules

Rules governing the grievance procedure shall be as follows:

1. Time limit waived

Any time limit specified in the grievance procedure may be waived by mutual written consent of both parties.

In the event the parties dispute timeline issues for matters submitted to arbitration, the arbitr will be limited to hear the timeliness arguments first, including any closing summation by the parties. The arbiter will then rule from the bench on the timeliness issue.

2. Failure of UNION

Failure of the UNION to submit the grievance in accordance with the time limits without waiver by both parties shall constitute abandonment of the grievance.

3. Failure of CITY

Failure by the CITY to submit a reply within the time limits specified in the CONTRACT will automatically move the matter to the next step* in the procedure provided that arbitration shall not be invoked unless and until both parties are fully aware in writing.

*The next step time line will be extended to a maximum of 30 days in order for the Union to respond.

C. Arbitration Procedures

1. Procedure

- a) After arbitration has been requested, the parties shall forthwith attempt to agree upon a single arbitrator. In the event the parties are unable to agree, a list of five arbitrators shall be requested from the Employment Relations Board of the State of Oregon. Each party shall alternately strike one name from the list received. A flip of a coin shall determine which party strikes first. The final name remaining shall be the sole arbitrator.
- b) The arbitrator shall exercise all powers relating to admissibility of evidence, conduct of the hearing and arbitration procedures.

2. Rules Governing Arbitration

In connection with any arbitration proceeding held pursuant to this CONTRACT, it is understood by both parties as follows:

- a) The arbitrator shall have no power to render a decision that will add to, subtract from or alter, change or modify the terms of this CONTRACT. Authority of the arbitrator shall be limited to interpretation or application of the express terms of this CONTRACT, and all other matters shall be excluded from arbitration.
- b) The decision of the arbitrator shall be final, conclusive and binding upon the CITY, the UNION and the employees involved.
- c) Any necessary expenses for the services of the arbitrator shall be paid by the losing party. If the arbitrator determines that there is no prevailing party, the arbitrator may apportion each party's cost as is equitable. Each party shall bear the cost of presenting its own case.
- d) The CITY and UNION agree that the arbitrator's decision should be in writing and should be made in thirty (30) days.
- e) The arbitration shall be limited to the specific issues raised in the written grievance filed by the UNION.
f) All three levels of the grievance procedure shall have first been exhausted unless the parties invoke Section B (3) of the grievance procedures.

ARTICLE 19 – EFFECT OF PERSONNEL RULES

Articles in this CONTRACT contain provisions which may also be covered in the CITY Personnel and Administrative Policies and Procedures. The parties agree that in such cases the CONTRACT shall govern, and the parties waive any and all rights and remedies granted by the CITY Personnel and Administrative Policies and Procedures. All matters not prescribed by the language of this agreement may be administered for its duration by the City in accordance with the City Personnel and Administrative Procedures. Nothing in this contract will be construed as a waiver of the Union's ability to bargain changes that bestow an obligation to bargain upon the City, subsequently, these personnel rules are not incorporated into this agreement and are not subject to grievance.

ARTICLE 20 – PERSONNEL FILE

- 1. The City, by direction of Human Resources, maintains a secured personnel file for each employee. The file includes "Personnel Action Forms" and records of employee's job classification and employment status. The personnel file includes other records related to employment including disciplinary actions, commendations, and evaluations. Medical documentation is stored separately and in a secured file.
- 2. The City, upon twenty-four (24) hours' notice of request by an employee, will provide an employee the opportunity to review the employee's personnel file. An employee may receive one copy of the personnel file, either as a hard copy or electronic (as a scan) per year at no cost. An employee may respond in writing to any item placed in their personnel file. Such written response will become a part of the file.
- **3.** Letters of oral reprimand will be considered stale after twelve (12) months from date imposed. A written reprimand will be considered stale after twenty-four (24) months from date imposed. A disciplinary sanction of suspension will be considered stale after thirty-six (36) months from date imposed. These timelines are not enforceable if the employee engages in similarly related conduct or job performance concerns during the timeline period. The City may use the documents to defend against legal action or for the purposes of impeachment or notice of rule.
- 4. Employees will have the opportunity to review and sign any personnel document that reflects any adverse personnel action, prior to such document being entered into the employee's personnel file. An employee's refusal to sign the document will have no effect or bearing on the execution of the adverse action. Should an employee refuse to sign said document, the responsible City representative will so state on the document, initial and date. If an employee disagrees with any statement of fact contained in said document, the employee may so indicate by attaching a written statement of reasonable length to said document at the time of review.

ARTICLE 21 – SAVINGS/WAIVER OF BARGAINING

A. Savings

Should any article, section or portion thereof in this CONTRACT be unlawful or held unlawful, invalid or unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such decision of said court shall apply only to the specific article, section or portion thereof, directly specified in said decision. Upon the issuance of such a decision, the parties agree to negotiate immediately a substitute, if possible, for the invalidated article, section or portion thereof. Parties agree to expedited negotiations as provided by ORS 243.698.

B. Waiver of Bargaining

The parties acknowledge that during the negotiations which resulted in this CONTRACT, each had the unlimited right and opportunity to make demands and proposals with respect to any subject or matter not removed by law from the area of collective bargaining, and that the understandings and agreements arrived at by the parties after the exercise of that right and opportunity are set forth in this CONTRACT. Therefore, the CITY and the UNION, for the life of this CONTRACT, each voluntarily and unqualifiedly waives the right, and each agrees that the other shall not be obligated to bargain collectively with respect to any subject or matter covered in this CONTRACT. The parties recognize that other matters of employment relations not covered by this agreement may be covered by other policy or past practice. The City acknowledges that changes in matters of employment relations not covered by this agreement may be subject to bargaining obligations under ORS 243.698. The Union acknowledges that matters of employment relations not covered by this agreement are not subject to further bargaining obligations unless brought forth by ORS 243.698 or ORS 243.702.

Upon mutual consent of the parties, the parties may meet and confer discuss other employment conditions.

ARTICLE 22 – FUNDING/BUDGET REDUCTIONS

A. Funding

The parties recognize that revenue needed to fund the compensation provided by this CONTRACT must be approved by established budget procedures and in certain circumstances by vote of the citizens.

B. Budget Reductions

In the event of the failure of the CITY budget to receive approval, the CITY and the UNION agree to meet and confer to discuss the economic provisions of this CONTRACT. The CITY retains its right to make final determinations on all levels of service, consistent with the provisions of this CONTRACT.

ARTICLE 23 – TERM OF AGREEMENT

This CONTRACT shall be effective upon execution and shall remain in full force and effect through June 30, 2024. However, no enhanced benefits will be effective until execution of this Agreement. The Agreement shall automatically be renewed from year to year thereafter, unless either party shall notify the other, in writing, no later than February 1, prior to the date of termination that it wishes to amend or modify this CONTRACT.

This CONTRACT is agreed to and signed by the following parties:

DATED this 3rd day of November , 2021

FOR THE CITY Ann Ober City Manager

Mark Gamba, Mayor

Gary Rebello Human Resources Director

POR THE UNION

Ross Kiely Council 75 Representative

Jennifer Backhaus, President

Collin Johnston, Vice President

APPENDIX A – WAGE SCALE

EFFECTIVE JUNE 24, 2021 (2% COLA)

52 Administrative Specialist I	Hourly	18.28	19.20	20.17	21.17	22.25	23.
52 Library Assistant I	Semi-Monthly	1,584.33	1,664.06	1,748.13	1,834.80	1,928.41	2,025.
52	Monthly	3,168.66	3,328.12	3,496.26	3,669.60	and the second se	4,050.
52	Annually	38,023.92	39,937.44	41,955.12	44,035.20	Construction of the state	48,611.
53	Hourly	19.20	20.17	21.17	22.25	the state of the s	24.
53	Semi-Monthly	1,664.06	1,748.13	1,834.80	1,928.41	A DATE OF THE OWNER WARDEN	2,125.
53	Monthly	3,328.12	3,496.26	3,669.60	3,856.82	and the second sec	4,250.
53	Annually	39,937.44	41,955.12	44,035.20	46,281.84	and a monthly report of debits	51,003.
54 Parking Enforcement Officer	Hourly	20.17	21.17	22.25	23.37	and the second second second	25.
54	Semi-Monthly	1,748.13	1,834.80	1,928.41	2,025.48	Contract Sectors (Sectors and Inc.)	2,233.
54	Monthly	3,496.26	3,669.60	3,856.82	4,050.96	1,928.41 3,856.82 46,281.84 23.37 2,025.48 4,050.96 48,611.52 24.52 2,125.15 4,250.30 51,003.60 25.77	4,466.
54	Annually	41,955.12	44,035.20	46,281.84	48,611.52	CONTRACTOR NO.	53,603.
55	Hourly	21.17	22.25	23.37	24.52		27.
55	Semi-Monthly	1,834.80	1,928.41	2,025.48	2,125.15		2,344.
55	Monthly	3,669.60	3,856.82	4,050.96	4,250.30		4,688.
55	Annually	44,035.20	46,281.84	48,611.52	51,003.60	ALC: A DECEMBER OF	56,266.
56 Administrative Specialist II	Fundany	44,03320	40,201.01	40,011.32	51,005.00	33,003.70	30,200.
56 Code Compliance Specialist	Hourly	22.25	23.37	24.52	25.77	27 OF	28.
56 Library Assistant II	Semi-Monthly	1,928.41	2,025.48	24.52	2,233.49		2,462.
56 Police Records Specialist	Monthly	3,856.82	Construction and the same	4,250.30	and the second se	COLUMN AND AND ADDRESS	and the second se
56	Annually	NAMES OF TAXABLE PARTY.	4,050.96	A HEARING REPORTED AND AND AND AND AND AND AND AND AND AN	4,466.98 53,603.76	- CONTRACTOR AND A DESCRIPTION OF	4,924.
57 Natural Resources Technician I	Hourly	46,281.84 23.37	48,611.52 24.52	51,003.60 25.77	27.05		59,094. 29.
57 Utility Technician I	Semi-Monthly	second states and the second states and	- Watered With States	2,233.49	Auto - New Addition Property of the	and the state of t	an accordingly
57 57	and a state of the	2,025.48	2,125.15	the state of the s	2,344.42	and the second second second	2,584.
57	Monthly Annually	4,050.96	4,250.30 51,003.60	4,466.98	4,688.84		5,169.
The second se	Pantodity	48,611.52	51,005.00	53,603.76	56,266.08	39,094.90	62,028.
58 Accounting Technician 58 Administrative Specialist III							
-							
58 Court Clerk	thematic	24.52	05 77	07.05			
58 Engineering Technician I	Hourty	24.52	25.77	27.05	28.41	Contraction of the second	31.3
58 Facilities Maintenance Tech	Semi-Monthly	2,125.15	2,233.49	2,344.42	2,462.29		2,713.
58 Natural Resources Technician II	Monthly	4,250.30	4,466.98	4,688.84	4,924.58	THE STREET AND ADDRESS	5,427.
58 Sign Maintenance Technician	Annually_	51,003.60	53,603.76	56,266.08	59,094.96	62,028.00	65,127.
58 Utility Technician II							
59 Mechanic	Hourly	25.77	27.05	28.41	29.82	Concernation of the second	32.9
59 Permit Technician	Semi-Monthly	2,233.49	2,344.42	2,462.29	2,584.50		2,851.4
59	Monthly	4,466.98	4,688.84	4,924.58	5,169.00	and the state of t	5,702.
59	Annually	53,603.76	56,266.08	59,094.96	62,028.00	65,127.36	68,434.
60 Accounting & Contract Specialist							
60 Asset Management Technician							
60 Assistant Planner							
60 Code Compliance Coordinator	and and a second						
60 Cross Connection Specialist	Hourly	27.05	28.41	29.82	31.31		34.
60 Deputy City Recorder	Semi-Monthly	2,344.42	2,462.29	2,584.50	2,713.64		2,992.7
60 Engineering Tech II	Monthly	4,688.84	4,924.58	5,169.00	5,427.28	and the state of the second state of the	5,985.4
50 Housing & Economic Development Assistant	Annually	56,266.08	59,094.96	62,028.00	65,127.36	68,434.56	71,825.2
50 Lead Utility Technician							
50 Librarian							
50 Records & Web Specialist							
51 Environmental Services Coordinator	Hourly	28.41	29.82	31.31	32.90	34.53	36.2
51 Event & Emergency Management Coord	Semi-Monthly	2,462.29	2,584.50	2,713.64	2,851.44	2,992.72	3,142.6
51 Urban Forester	Monthly	4,924.58	5,169.00	5,427.28	5,702.88	5,985.44	6,285.3
51	Annually	59,094.96	62,028.00	65,127.36	68,434.56	71,825.28	75,423.6
52 Building Inspector / Plans Examiner							
	Hourly	29.82	31.31	32.90	34.53	36.26	38.0
52 Lead Mechanic	(In all the						
52 Lead Mechanic 52 Engineering Tech III	Semi-Monthly	2,584.50	2,713.64	2,851.44	2,992.72	3,142.65	3,300.3
		こうしょう 日本 あつい	2,713.64 5,427.28	2,851.44 5,702.88	2,992.72 5,985.44	3,142.65 6,285.30	3,300.3 6,600.7

*Monthly and annual figures are for reference only.

City of Milwaukie / AFSCME Collective Bargaining Agreement 2021-2024

63 Associate Engineer	Hourly	31.31	32.90	34.53	36.26	38.08	39.9
63 Accountant	Semi-Monthly	2,713.64	2,851.44	2,992.72	3,142.65	3,300.39	3,464.2
63 Associate Planner	Monthly	5,427.28	5,702.88	5,985.44	6,285.30	6,600.78	6,928.4
63 Climate Action & Sustainability Coord	Annually	65,127.36	68,434.56	71,825.28	75,423.60	79,209.36	83,140.8
63 Equity Program Manager							
63 Housing & Economic Development Prog. Mgr							
63 Parks Development Coordinator							
64	Hourly	32.90	34.53	36.26	38.08	39.97	41.98
64	Semi-Monthly	2,851.44	2,992.72	3,142.65	3,300.39	3,464.20	3,638.41
64	Monthly	5,702.88	5,985.44	6,285.30	6,600.78	6,928.40	7,276.82
64	Annually	68,434.56	71,825.28	75,423.60	79,209.36	83,140.80	87,321.84
65 IT Analyst II	Hourly	34.53	36.26	38.08	39.97	41.98	44.08
65 IT Business Systems Analyst	Semi-Monthly	2,992.72	3,142.65	3,300.39	3,464.20	3,638.41	3,820.41
65	Monthly	5,985.44	6,285.30	6,600.78	6,928.40	7,276.82	7,640.82
65	Annually	71,825.28	75,423.60	79,209.36	83,140.80	87,321.84	91,689.84
66 Civil Engineer							
66 Community Engagement Coordinator							
66 Communication Program Manager	Hourly	36.26	38.08	39.97	41.98	44.08	46.29
66 Development Project Manager	Semi-Monthly	3,142.65	3,300.39	3,464.20	3,638.41	3,820.41	4,011.95
66 GIS Coordinator	Monthly	6,285.30	6,600.78	6,928.40	7,276.82	7,640.82	8,023.90
66 Senior Planner	Annually	75,423.60	79,209.36	83,140.80	87,321.84	91,689.84	96,286.80

EFFECTIVE DECEMBER 24, 2021 (1% COLA)

52 Administrative Specialist I	Hourly	18.46	2 19.39	20.37	21.38	22.47	23
52 Library Assistant I	Semi-Monthly	1,599.93	1,680.53	1,765.47	1,853.00	1,947.47	2,045
52	Monthly	3,199.86	3,361.06	3,530.94	3,706.00	3,894.94	4,090
52	Annually	38,398.32	40,332.72	42,371.28	44,472.00	46,739.28	49,089
53	Hourly	19.39	20.37	21.38	22.47	23.60	24
53	Semi-Monthly	1,680.53	1,765.47	1,853.00	1,947.47	2,045.41	2,146
53	Monthly	3,361.06	3,530.94	3,706.00	3,894.94	4,090.82	4,293
53	Annually	40,332.72	42,371.28	44,472.00	46,739.28	49,089.84	51,523
54 Parking Enforcement Officer	Hourly	20.37	21.38	22.47	23.60	24.77	26
54	Semi-Monthly	1,765.47	1,853.00	1,947.47	2,045.41	2,146.82	2,256
54	Monthly	3,530.94	3,706.00	3,894.94	4,090.82	4,293.64	4,512
54	Annually	42,371.28	44,472.00	46,739.28	49,089.84	51,523.68	54,144
55	Hourly	21.38	22.47	23.60	24.77	26.03	27
55	Semi-Monthly	1,853.00	1,947.47	2,045.41	2,146.82	2,256.02	2,367
55	Monthly	3,706.00	3,894.94	4,090.82	4,293.64	4,512.04	4,735
55	Annually	44,472.00	46,739.28	49,089.84	51,523.68	54,144.48	56,827
56 Administrative Specialist II							
56 Code Compliance Specialist	Hourly	22.47	23.60	24.77	26.03	27.32	28
56 Library Assistant II	Semi-Monthly	1,947.47	2,045.41	2,146.82	2,256.02	2,367.82	2,486
56 Police Records Specialist	Monthly	3,894.94	4,090.82	4,293.64	4,512.04	4,735.64	4,973
56	Annually	46,739.28	49,089,84	51,523.68	54,144.48	56,827.68	59,677
57 Natural Resources Technician I	Hourly	23.60	24.77	26.03	27.32	28.69	30
57 Utility Technician I	Semi-Monthly	2,045.41	2,146.82	2,256.02	2,367.82	2,486.56	2,610
57	Monthly	4,090.82	4,293.64	4,512.04	4,735.64	4,973.12	5,221
57	Annually	49,089.84	51,523.68	54,144.48	56,827.68	59,677.44	62,652
58 Accounting Technician			allow a badda anala				
58 Administrative Specialist III							
58 Court Clerk							
58 Engineering Technician I	Hourly	24.77	26.03	27.32	28.69	30.12	31
58 Facilities Maintenance Tech	Semi-Monthly	2,146.82	2,256.02	2,367.82	2,486.56	2,610.50	2,740
58 Natural Resources Technician II	Monthly	4,293.64	4,512.04	4,735.64	4,973.12	5,221.00	5,481
58 Sign Maintenance Technician	Annually	51,523.68	54,144.48	56,827.68	59,677.44	62,652.00	65,772
58 Utility Technician II							
59 Mechanic	Hourly	26.03	27.32	28.69	30.12	31.62	33
59 Permit Technician	Semi-Monthly	2,256.02	2,367.82	2,486.56	2,610.50	2,740.51	2,880
59	Monthly	4,512.04	4,735.64	4,973.12	5,221.00	5,481.02	5,760
59	Annually	54,144.48	56,827.68	59,677.44	62,652.00	65,772.24	69,120
60 Accounting & Contract Specialist 60 Asset Management Technician 60 Assistant Planner				ou - 12			
60 Code Compliance Coordinator							
60 Cross Connection Specialist	Hourly	27.32	28.69	30.12	31.62	33.23	34
60 Deputy City Recorder	Semi-Monthly	2,367.82	2,486.56	2,610.50	2,740.51	2,880.04	3,023
60 Engineering Tech II	Monthly	4,735.64	4,973.12	5,221.00	5,481.02	5,760.08	6,046
60 Housing & Economic Development Assistant	Annually_	56,827.68	59,677.44	62,652.00	65,772.24	69,120.96	72,553
50 Lead Utility Technician							
60 Librarian							
60 Records & Web Specialist							
61 Environmental Services Coordinator	Hourly	28.69	30.12	31.62	33.23	34.88	36.
61 Event & Emergency Management Coord	Semi-Monthly	2,486.56	2,610.50	2,740.51	2,880.04	3,023.05	3,173.
61 Urban Forester	Monthly	4,973.12	5,221.00	5,481.02	5,760.08	6,046.10	6,347.
51	Annually	59,677.44	62,652.00	65,772.24	69,120.96	72,553.20	76,172.
62 Building Inspector / Plans Examiner							
52 Lead Mechanic	Hourly	30.12	31.62	33.23	34.88	36.62	38.
62 Engineering Tech III	Semi-Monthly	2,610.50	2,740.51	2,880.04	3,023.05	3,173.86	3,333.
52 Water Treatment Operator	Monthly	5,221.00	5,481.02	5,760.08	6,046.10	6,347.72	6,666.
	Annually	62,652.00	65,772.24	69,120.96	72,553.20	76,172.64	79,999.

63 Associate Engineer	Hourly	31.62	33.23	34.88	36.62	38.46	40.3
63 Accountant	Semi-Monthly	2,740.51	2,880.04	3,023.05	3,173.86	3,333.33	3,498.8
63 Associate Planner	Monthly	5,481.02	5,760.08	6,046.10	6,347.72	6,666.66	6,997.7
63 Climate Action & Sustainability Coord	Annually	65,772.24	69,120.96	72,553.20	76,172.64	79,999.92	83,972.8
63 Equity Program Manager					in a second second second		
63 Housing & Economic Development Prog. Mgr							
63 Parks Development Coordinator							
64	Hourly	33.23	34.88	36.62	38.46	40.37	42.40
64	Semi-Monthly	2,880.04	3,023.05	3,173.86	3,333.33	3,498.87	3,674.81
64	Monthly	5,760.08	6,046.10	6,347.72	6,666.66	6,997.74	7,349.62
64	Annually	69,120.96	72,553.20	76,172.64	79,999.92	83,972.88	88,195.44
65 IT Analyst II	Hourly	34.88	36.62	38.46	40.37	42.40	44.52
65 IT Business Systems Analyst	Semi-Monthly	3,023.05	3,173.86	3,333.33	3,498.87	3,674.81	3,858.55
65	Monthly	6,046.10	6,347.72	6,666.66	6,997.74	7,349.62	7,717.10
65	Annually	72,553.20	76,172.64	79,999.92	83,972.88	88,195.44	92,605.20
66 Civil Engineer							
66 Community Engagement Coordinator							
66 Communication Program Manager	Hourly	36.62	38.46	40.37	42.40	44.52	46.75
66 Development Project Manager	Semi-Monthly	3,173.86	3,333.33	3,498.87	3,674.81	3,858.55	4,051.82
66 GIS Coordinator	Monthly	6,347.72	6,666.66	6,997.74	7,349.62	7,717.10	8,103.64
56 Senior Planner	Annually	76,172.64	79,999.92	83,972.88	88,195.44	92,605.20	97,243.68

EFFECTIVE June 24, 2022 (3% COLA)

52 Administrative Specialist I	Hourly	19.01	19.97	20.98	22.02	23.14	24
52 Library Assistant I	Semi-Monthly	1,647.60	1,730.80	1,818.34	1,908.47	2,005.54	2,106
52	Monthly	3,295.20	3,461.60	3,636.68	3,816.94	4,011.08	4,213
52	Annually	39,542.40	41,539.20	43,640.16	45,803.28	48,132.96	50,566
53	Hourly	19.97	20.98	22.02	23.14	24.31	25
53	Semi-Monthly	1,730.80	1,818.34	1,908.47	2,005.54	2,106.95	2,210
53	Monthly	3,461.60	3,636.68	3,816.94	4,011.08	4,213.90	4,421
53	Annually	41,539.20	43,640.16	45,803.28	48,132.96	50,566.80	53,062
54 Parking Enforcement Officer	Hourly	20.98	22.02	23.14	24.31	25.51	26
54	Semi-Monthly	1,818.34	1,908.47	2,005.54	2,106.95	2,210.95	2,323
54	Monthly	3,636.68	3,816.94	4,011.08	4,213.90	4,421.90	4,647
54	Annually	43,640.16	45,803.28	48,132.96	50,566.80	53,062.80	55,766
55	Hourly	22.02	23.14	24.31	25.51	26.81	28
55	Semi-Monthly	1,908.47	2,005.54	2,106.95	2,210.95	2,323.62	2,438
55	Monthly	3,816.94	4,011.08	4,213.90	4,421.90	4,647.24	4,877
55	Annually	45,803.28	48,132.96	50,566.80	53,062.80	55,766.88	58,533
56 Administrative Specialist II				and the second			
56 Code Compliance Specialist	Hourly	23.14	24.31	25.51	26.81	28.14	29
56 Library Assistant II	Semi-Monthly	2,005.54	2,106.95	2,210.95	2,323.62	2,438.89	2,561
56 Police Records Specialist	Monthly	4,011.08	4,213.90	4,421.90	4,647.24	4,877.78	5,122
56	Annually	48,132.96	50,566.80	53,062.80	55,766.88	58,533.36	61,466
57 Natural Resources Technician I	Hourly	24.31	25.51	26.81	28.14	29.55	31
57 Utility Technician I	Semi-Monthly	2,106.95	2,210.95	2,323.62	2,438.89	2,561.10	2,688
57	Monthly	4,213.90	4,421.90	4,647.24	4,877.78	5,122.20	5,377
57	Annually	50,566.80	53,062.80	55,766.88	58,533.36	61,466.40	64,524
58 Accounting Technician							
58 Administrative Specialist III							
58 Court Clerk							
58 Engineering Technician I	Hourly	25.51	26.81	28.14	29.55	31.02	32.
58 Facilities Maintenance Tech	Semi-Monthly	2,210.95	2,323.62	2,438.89	2,561.10	2,688.50	2,822
58 Natural Resources Technician II	Monthly	4,421.90	4,647.24	4,877.78	5,122.20	5,377.00	5,645
58 Sign Maintenance Technician	Annually	53,062.80	55,766.88	58,533.36	61,466.40	64,524.00	67,748.
58 Utility Technician II							
59 Mechanic	Hourly	26.81	28.14	29.55	31.02	32.57	34.
59 Permit Technician	Semi-Monthly	2,323.62	2,438.89	2,561.10	2,688.50	2,822.84	2,966.
59	Monthly	4,647.24	4,877.78	5,122.20	5,377.00	5,645.68	5,933.
59	Annually	55,766.88	58,533.36	61,466.40	64,524.00	67,748.16	71,201.
60 Accounting & Contract Specialist							
60 Asset Management Technician							
60 Assistant Planner							
60 Code Compliance Coordinator							
60 Cross Connection Specialist	Hourly	28.14	29.55	31.02	32.57	34.23	35.
60 Deputy City Recorder	Semi-Monthly	2,438.89	2,561.10	2,688.50	2,822.84	2,966.71	3,114.
60 Engineering Tech II	Monthly	4,877.78	5,122.20	5,377.00	5,645.68	5,933.42	6,228.
60 Housing & Economic Development Assistant	Annually	58,533.36	61,466.40	64,524.00	67,748.16	71,201.04	74,737.
60 Lead Utility Technician							
60 Librarian							
60 Records & Web Specialist							
51 Environmental Services Coordinator	Hourly	29.55	31.02	32.57	34.23	35.93	37.
61 Event & Emergency Management Coord	Semi-Monthly	2,561.10	2,688.50	2,822.84	2,966.71	3,114.05	3,269.
51 Urban Forester	Monthly	5,122.20	5,377.00	5,645.68	5,933.42	6,228.10	6,538.3
51	Annually	61,466.40	64,524.00	67,748.16	71,201.04	74,737.20	78,460.
52 Building Inspector / Plans Examiner							
52 Lead Mechanic	Hourly	31.02	32.57	34.23	35.93	37.72	39.
52 Engineering Tech III	Semi-Monthly	2,688.50	2,822.84	2,966.71	3,114.05	3,269.19	3,433.0
	ALC: NOTE THAT AND A DEVELOPMENT OF THE					CONTRACTORY BY A	
52 Water Treatment Operator	Monthly	5,377.00	5,645.68	5,933.42	6,228.10	6,538.38	6,866.0

63 Associate Engineer	Hourly	32.57	34.23	35.93	37.72	39.61	41.5
63 Accountant	Semi-Monthly	2,822.84	2,966.71	3,114.05	3,269.19	3,433.00	3,603.7
63 Associate Planner	Monthly	5,645.68	5,933.42	6,228.10	6,538.38	6,856.00	7,207.4
63 Climate Action & Sustainability Coord	Annually	67,748.16	71,201.04	74,737.20	78,460.56	82,392.00	86,489.7
63 Equity Program Manager							
63 Housing & Economic Development Prog. Mgr							
63 Parks Development Coordinator	here a shirt is not a start of the start of the			an of the decide strength			
64	Hourly	34.23	35.93	37.72	39.61	41.58	43.67
64	Semi-Monthly	2,966.71	3,114.05	3,269.19	3,433.00	3,603.74	3,784.88
64	Monthly	5,933.42	6,228.10	6,538.38	6,866.00	7,207.48	7,569.76
64	Annually	71,201.04	74,737.20	78,460.56	82,392.00	86,489.76	90,837.12
65 IT Analyst II	Hourly	35.93	37.72	39.61	41.58	43.67	45.86
65 IT Business Systems Analyst	Semi-Monthly	3,114.05	3,269.19	3,433.00	3,603.74	3,784.88	3,974.69
65	Monthly	6,228.10	6,538.38	6,866.00	7,207.48	7,569.76	7,949.38
65	Annually	74,737.20	78,460.56	82,392.00	86,489.76	90,837.12	95,392.56
66 Civil Engineer				and the second second second		and the state of	
66 Community Engagement Coordinator							
66 Communication Program Manager	Hourly	37.72	39.61	41.58	43.67	45.86	48.15
66 Development Project Manager	Semi-Monthly	3,269.19	3,433.00	3,603.74	3,784.88	3,974.69	4,173.16
66 GIS Coordinator	Monthly	6,538.38	6,866.00	7,207.48	7,569.76	7,949.38	8,346.32
66 Senior Planner	Annually	78,460.56	82,392.00	86,489.76	90,837.12	95,392.56	100,155.84

EFFECTIVE JUNE 24, 2023 (3% COLA)

52 Administrative Specialist I	Hourty	19.58	20.57	21.61	22.68	23.83	25
52 Library Assistant I	Semi-Monthly	1,697.00	1,782.80	1,872.94	1,965.68	2,065.35	2,170
52	Monthly	3,394.00	3,565.60	3,745.88	3,931.36	4,130.70	4,340
52	Annually	40,728.00	42,787.20	44,950.56	47,176.32	49,568.40	52,085
53	Hourly	20.57	21.61	22.68	23.83	25.04	26
53	Semi-Monthly	1,782.80	1,872.94	1,965.68	2,065.35	2,170.22	2,277
53	Monthly	3,565.60	3,745.88	3,931.36	4,130.70	4,340.44	4,555
53	Annually	42,787.20	44,950.56	47,176.32	49,568.40	52,085.28	54,664
54 Parking Enforcement Officer	Hourty	21.61	22.68	23.83	25.04	26.28	27
54	Semi-Monthly	1,872.94	1,965.68	2,065.35	2,170.22	2,277.69	2,392
54	Monthly	3,745.88	3,931.36	4,130.70	4,340.44	4,555.38	4,785
54	Annually	44,950.56	47,176.32	49,568.40	52,085.28	54,664.56	57,431
55	Hourly	22.68	23.83	25.04	26.28	27.61	28
55	Semi-Monthly	1,965.68	2,065.35	2,170.22	2,277.69	2,392.96	2,511
55	Monthly	3,931.36	4,130.70	4,340.44	4,555.38	4,785.92	5,023
55	Annually	47,176.32	49,568.40	52,085.28	54,664.56	57,431.04	60,280
56 Administrative Specialist II							
56 Code Compliance Specialist	Hourly	23.83	25.04	26.28	27.61	28.98	30
56 Library Assistant II	Semi-Monthly	2,065.35	2,170.22	2,277.69	2,392.96	2,511.70	2,638
56 Police Records Specialist	Monthly	4,130.70	4,340.44	4,555.38	4,785.92	5,023.40	5,276
56	Annually	49,568.40	52,085.28	54,664.56	57,431.04	60,280.80	63,317
57 Natural Resources Technician I	Hourly	25.04	26.28	27.61	28.98	30.44	31
57 Utility Technician I	Semi-Monthly	2,170.22	2,277.69	2,392.96	2,511.70	2,638.23	2,769
57	Monthly	4,340.44	4,555.38	4,785.92	5,023.40	5,276.46	5,538
57	Annually	52,085.28	54,664.56	57,431.04	60,280.80	63,317.52	66,458
58 Accounting Technician 58 Administrative Specialist III							
58 Court Clerk							
58 Engineering Technician I	Hourly	26.28	27.61	28.98	30.44	31.95	33.
58 Facilities Maintenance Tech	Semi-Monthly	2,277.69	2,392.96	2,511.70	2,638.23	2,769.11	2,907.
58 Natural Resources Technician II	Monthly	4,555.38	4,785.92	5,023.40	5,276.46	5,538.22	5,815.
58 Sign Maintenance Technician	Annually	54,664.56	57,431.04	60,280.80	63,317.52	66,458.64	69,786.
58 Utility Technician II	A STATE AND AND A	21,001.20	27,102.01	00,200.00	00,027.32	00,100.01	
59 Mechanic	Hourly	27.61	28.98	30.44	31.95	33.55	35.
59 Permit Technician	Semi-Monthly	2,392.96	2,511.70	2,638.23	2,769.11	2,907.78	3,055.
59	Monthly	4,785.92	5,023.40	5,276.46	5,538.22	5,815.56	6,111.
59	Annually	57,431.04	60,280.80	63,317.52	66,458.64	69,786.72	73,343.
60 Accounting & Contract Specialist							
60 Asset Management Technician							
60 Assistant Planner							
60 Code Compliance Coordinator							
60 Cross Connection Specialist	Hourly	28.98	30.44	31.95	33.55	35.26	37.
60 Deputy City Recorder	Semi-Monthly	2,511.70	2,638.23	2,769.11	2,907.78	3,055.98	3,207.
50 Engineering Tech II	Monthly	5,023.40	5,276.46	5,538.22	5,815.56	6,111.96	6,415.
60 Housing & Economic Development Assistant	Annually	60,280.80	63,317.52	66,458.64	69,786.72	73,343.52	76,983.
50 Lead Utility Technician							
50 Librarian							
60 Records & Web Specialist							
61 Environmental Services Coordinator	Hourly	30.44	31.95	33.55	35.26	37.01	38.
51 Event & Emergency Management Coord	Semi-Monthly	2,638.23	2,769.11	2,907.78	3,055.98	3,207.66	3,367.
51 Urban Forester	Monthly	5,276.46	5,538.22	5,815.56	6,111.96	6,415.32	6,734.3
51	Annually	63,317.52	66,458.64	69,786.72	73,343.52	76,983.84	80,811.
52 Building Inspector / Plans Examiner							
52 Lead Mechanic	Hourly	31.95	33.55	35.26	37.01	38.85	40.8
52 Engineering Tech III	Semi-Monthly	2,769.11	2,907.78	3,055.98	3,207.66	3,367.13	3,536.
				6,111.96	6,415.32	6,734.26	7,072.2
52 Water Treatment Operator	Monthly	5,538.22	5,815.56	0,111.50	0,413.32	0,134.20	1,012.4

63 Associate Engineer	Hourly	33.55	35.26	37.01	38.85	40.80	42.8
63 Accountant	Semi-Monthly	2,907.78	3,055.98	3,207.66	3,367.13	3,536.14	3,712.0
63 Associate Planner	Monthly	5,815.56	6,111.96	6,415.32	6,734.26	7,072.28	7,424.1
63 Climate Action & Sustainability Coord	Annually	69,786.72	73,343.52	76,983.84	80,811.12	84,867.36	89,089.9
63 Equity Program Manager							
63 Housing & Economic Development Prog. Mgr						ALL STOP	
63 Parks Development Coordinator	the way of the cost of the second						
64	Hourly	35.26	37.01	38.85	40.80	42.83	44.98
64	Semi-Monthly	3,055.98	3,207.66	3,367.13	3,536.14	3,712.08	3,898.42
64	Monthly	6,111.96	6,415.32	6,734.26	7,072.28	7,424.16	7,796.84
64	Annually	73,343.52	76,983.84	80,811.12	84,867.36	89,089.92	93,562.08
65 IT Analyst II	Hourly	37.01	38.85	40.80	42.83	44.98	47.24
65 IT Business Systems Analyst	Semi-Monthly	3,207.66	3,367.13	3,536.14	3,712.08	3,898.42	4,094.29
65	Monthly	6,415.32	6,734.26	7,072.28	7,424.16	7,796.84	8,188.58
65	Annually	76,983.84	80,811.12	84,867.36	89,089.92	93,562.08	98,262.96
66 Civit Engineer							
66 Community Engagement Coordinator							
66 Communication Program Manager	Hourly	38.85	40.80	42.83	44.98	47.24	49.59
66 Development Project Manager	Semi-Monthly	3,367.13	3,536.14	3,712.08	3,898.42	4,094.29	4,297.97
66 GIS Coordinator	Monthly	6,734.26	7,072.28	7,424.16	7,795.84	8,188.58	8,595.94
66 Senior Planner	Annually	80,811.12	84,867.36	89,089.92	93,562.08	98,262.96	103,151.28